
1991 Finance (No. 2) Bill 
mnd Finance (No. 3) 

Bill

If a person sells his house lor which 
he realises Rs. 25,000, we  shall  not 
assess the capital gains earned there- 
M) provided he is a person who does 
■ot own probably  more  than  two 
houses or does not, at any rate, has a 
house of the value of Rs. 50,000  in 
the aggregate. I have  tabled  that 
amendment in pursuance of the pro­
mise that I gave to the House when 
I brought these Bills forward.

1 do not think it is necessary  for 
me, at the present stage,  to  dilate 
further in regard to the provisions of 
the Bill. I have no doubt that the hon. 
Members would scan the  Bills  and 
dissect them and expose the  defects 
in them and ask for  an  explanation 
when necessary. I am also sure  in 
my mind that  the  hon.  Members 
would like to go beyond  the  Bills 
themselves and also to  the  general 
economic situation which in part hap­
pens to be the justification for  my 
producing these measures. I do hope 
to be able to receive  very  valuable 
advice from such hon.  Members  as 
would intervene in the debate. So faF 
as I am concerned, I have been pro­
mised a rich fare, and the hon. Mem­
bers have asked 8J hours to discuss 
this motion. I am not saying it in  a 
light spirit, but I do feel that at the 
present moment, the  task that  we 
have set ourselves to is such, that any 
constructive advice that comes  from 
any hon. Member from any quarter 
will be highly welcome and it would 
be treated with a great deal of respê 
and would be examined and utiliâ 
to the extent that it is possiblê or 
us to do. Therefore, at the  n̂sent 
moment, I shall content myŝ  with 
these  preliminary  remarks and  I 
commend these two Bills for the con­
sideration of the House.
Shrimati Rena Chakravartty: Which
the  amendment  that  has  been 

tabled by the hon. Minister to cover 
the cases about the  selling of  one 
house, etc.? Is it a new amendment?
Shri T. T. Krishnamachari:  I  do

»ot think it has come. It has just now 
come, I think, to me. It will be avail­
able to the hon. Members.  '
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Shrimati Renu ClukniTartty:  It is
not circulated.

Mr. Chairmsui: It will b« circulated 
to the Members.

Motions moved:

(1) “That the Bill to  increase
or modify the rates of duty  on 
certain goods imported intô &ndia 
and to impose duties of excise on 
certain goods produced or manu­
factured in India and to increase 
the stamp duty on bills  of  ex­
change, be taken into considera­
tion”.  '

(2) “That the Bill  further  to 
amend  the  Indian  Income-tax 
Act, 1922, for the purpose of im­
posing a tax on capital gains and 
for certain other purposes and to 
prescribe the rate of super-tax on 
companies for the financial  year 
1957-58, be taken into considera­
tion”.

MOTION RE REPORT OF GOVERN­
MENT INSPECTOR OF RAILWAYS 
ON DERAILMENT OF 319 DOWN 

EXPRESS.

Mr. Chairman: The House will now 
proceed with the motion to be moved 
by Shri Feroze Gandhi.

14.59 hrs.

[Mr. Deputy-Speaker in the Chair]

Shri  Feroze  Gandhi  (̂atapgarh 
îstt.—West cum Rae Bareli Distt.— 
East): I beg to move:
“That the Report of the Gov­

ernment Inspector of Railways on 
the derailment of 319 Down Ex­
press at a girder bridge between 
Jangaon and Raghunathpalli sta­
tions on the 27th September, 1954, 
resulting in the death of 136 per­
sons be taken into consideration.”. 

Shri T. B. Vittal Rao (Khammam): 
Sir, this report by the Government 
Inspector of Railways comes under the 
Ministry of Communications. I would 
like to know whether both the Minis­
ters will reply to this debate or 6nly 
one Minister, that is, the Railway 
Minister. The report, as it is before
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us, is made by an official who is under
the Ministry of Communications.
Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I will find that 
out. Meanwhile, the mover can go on 
with his speech.
15 hrs.
Shri Feroze Gandhi: Mr. Deputy- 
Speakerv; Sir, the disaster at Jangaon- 
Raghunathapalli, which occurred on 
the  27th  September  1954  was  the 
biggest in the history of the Indian 
Railways.  My point in raising this 
discussion is that the Report of the 
Grovemment  Inspector  of  Railways . 
reveals that the accident could have 
been averted. The accident to the 319 
Down Express occurred as a result of 
the failure of bridge No. 393.  The 
bridge failed as a result of 2 out of 3 
of its piers having sunk due to scour 
at the foundations.  According to the 
report of the Inspector, the foundation 
of these two piers was not deep enough 
to withstand the flood on the 27th 
September  1954.  The  Government 
Inspector also states that had the piers 
been founded on rock or mooram, the 
accident would have been averted. 
Now, what was the depth of the foun­
dation of these two piers? There were 
three piers in the bridge Nos. 1, 2 and 
3. It was No. 3 pier which did not 
sink or give way. The foundation was 
at the depth of 15*25 feet, below the 
bed level of the river and was resting 
on hard mooram.  This depth in the 
case of piers Nos. 1 and 2 was only 
feet.  The Government Inspector's 

report states that the strata below the 
foundation of these two piers was not 
hard soil.  If the foundation was not 
rock, if it was not mooram *nd if it 
was not hard soil, then I ask, what 
î e is there in a river?
Mr. Deputy-Speaker, piers Nos. 1 

and 2 of bridge 393 were resting on 
sand of 2-05 mm. grade. This is reveal­
ed in the report.7)

Shri Mulchand Dube (Farrukhabad 
Distt.—̂ North): When was the bridge 
built?
Shri Feroze Gandhi: I will come to 

that later. The bridge was opened to 
traffic in 1886; it was damaged three
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times before 1907, then in 1908, 1913, 
1914, 1915, 1918, 1920 and 1937. Then 
in 1939 the flood level touched the 
bottom of the griders and pier No. 3 
was washed away. This pier was re­
built in 1940,-and its foundation was 
taken down to a depth of 15*25 feet. 
The other piers were left just as they 
were. There, is not a shadow of doubt 
that this bridge was vulnerable. If I 
may say so, it was dangerously vulner­
able.  The railway was taken over 
from the Nizam in April 1950 accord­
ing to the statement laid on the Table 
of the House by the Deputy Minister 
and was in charge of our engineers, 
and it was their duty to have checked 
up and tested the lines and bridges 
according to the rules laid down in 
the Indian Railway Code. By this, I 
mean, the rules imder which a line 
under construction is declared as an 
, “open line” and  certain formalities 
are gone through before it can be 
opened to traffic,

I would like to say a word about 
the river. The river Yashwantpuram 
in the immediate vicinity of the bridge 
is 400 feet wide and the linear water­
way under the bridge is 76 feet. It is 
obvious that there was severe con­
striction under the bridge. The ques­
tion arises whether the design of the 
bridge was defective, and if so, 
did the Chief Engineer certify it as fit 
for open-line traffic?  That it was a 
defective piece of engineering is borne 
out by the findings of Shri Joglekar, 
Director of Central Water and Power 
Research Station, who was consulted 
by the Government Inspector. Accord­
ing to Shri Joglekar, the waterway at 
the bridge should be designed to cater 
for a normal maximum discharge of 
20,000 cubic feet per second. I em­
phasize the words “normal maximum 
discharge”.  This has nothing to do 
with the rains on the 27th September, 
1954; whether they  were heavy or 
light, I am not concerned. The water­
way required for this normal maxi­
mum discharge would be 376 feet. 
Against the required waterway of 37ft
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feet, the actual waterway under the 
bridge was only 76 feet. I want to 
emphasize this point.

Commenting on the history of the 
bridge,  the  Government  Inspector 
stated:

“Had a proper appreciation of 
the  maximum  flood  discharge 
been made in  1940, the entire 
bridge might have been rebuilt 
and  additional  waterway  pro­
vided”

The Inspector arrived at the follow­
ing conclusion:

“I am of opinion that in 1940 
the railway administration should 
have rebuilt the abutment and 
piers 1 and 2 on deeper founda­
tions, when such a course was 
adopted for the construction of 
pier No. 3.”

The design of the bridge was so 
palpably wrong that it passes my 
comprehension  as  to  how  it  wlis 
allowed to go unnoticed by our rail­
way engineers, whose duty it was to 
ensure the safety of the permanent 
way and the structures on the perma­
nent way. The railway administration 
has thrown the responsibility for the 
accident on the shoulders of those who 
built the bridge in 1940, I would like 
to ask the questions; Supposing the 
Jamna bridge collapses tomorrow...

The Deputy Minister of Railways 
;and Transport (Shri Alagesan):  God
forbid. ,

Shri Feroze Gandhi: You had better 
be careful, but only a few months ago, 
it might have; supposing the bridge 
coll:;pses  tpmorrow,  whom  are we 
going to biame?  On whom are we 
going to fix the responsibility? Shall 
we dig up the man from the grave 
who built it, probably 70 or 80 years 
ago...?

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Who predicts 
it?

Shri Feroze Gandhi:  I was only 
giving this illustration that we cannot 
blame those who built these bridges. 
The Railway Board has taken up the
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responsibility for the thorough up­
keep and efficiency of these bridges, 
and therefore to say that somebody 
built it in 1940 and another person 
built it in 1920 would not be good or 
correct.

My next point is this: Was the his­
tory of this bridge and the fact that 
it was a vulnerable site known to the 
railway engineers and I would like the 
Railway Administration to speak for 
itself. During the evidence before the 
Government  Inspector  of  Railways, 
the permanent—way gangman stated 
that he was aware - of the fact that 
the bridge had once collapsed and the 
river was susceptible to sudden and 
severe flood. Next comes the perma­
nent way Inspector. 'He stated that he 
considered the bridge as a vulnerable 
point requiring special watch.  Next 
comes the Divisional Engineer Shri R. 
Butt.  The Divisional Engineer had 
made a remark in the bridge register 
in March 1952 that the bridge required i 
to be watched.  Later, he explained 
away this remark by saying that I 
verbally told my assistant engineer; 
what I meant by this ̂ŷs an ordinary 
inspection that goes ô5̂!he Divisional 
Engineer Shri Aibara in 1940 had 
recommended additional spans of 20 
feet each and raising of the bridge 
girders. Another engineer, Shri AUem 
had recommended an additional span,
I think, of 40 feet and raising the 
girders by 4 feet.  It was not done 
because the Chief Eingineer rejected 
their advice. I would like the House 
to pay attention to what two of the 
highest officers in the railway have to 
say. I am reading from the evidence. 
The Deputy Chief Engineer who held 
charge of the south zone inspected this 
section in 1953 when he also examined 
the bridge inspection register; but, the 
pages concerning this bridge escaped 
his attention. He is the second highest 
officer on the Central Railway.

3.10 p. M.

[Mr. Speaker in the Chaif]

Before I dedl with the responsibility 
of the Chief Engineer, I would like 
to read out para. 103 from the Indian
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Railway Code. The edition is 1952 and 
as far as I am aware, no later edition 
kas been brought out.  This is 
responsibility of the Chief Engineer:

“He is the administrative and 
professional head of his depart­
ment, for the efficient and econo­
mical working of which he is 
responsible. It is his duty to see 
that adequate and detailed rules 
exist or are prescribed in depart­

- mental manuals for the efficient 
maintenance and renewal of all 
open lintj structural works and 
that  the  permanent  way,  the 
bridges,  the  signals  and  other 
structures  of  the  railway  are 
actually maintained at the stan­
dard required to satisfy the Gov­
ernment  Inspector  of Railways.
At the close of every year, the 
Chief  Engineer  is  required  to 
append a certificate to the annual 
report of the railway that the 
permanent way and other struc­
tural works on the railway had 
been maintained efficiently.”
This is the responsibility of the Chiel 

Engineer. What did he say before the 
Government  Inspector?  The  Chief 
Engineer was not aware of the history 
•f this bridge and consequently the 
question of prescribing the safety limit 
for the flood level of this bridge was 
not considered by him. Amongst the 
Deputy Chief Engineer and the Chief 
Engineer, one says that during the 
inspection the pages escaped his atten­
tion. The other says that the history 
of the bridge was not known to him. 
May I ask, how the Chief was ensur­
ing the efficiency of this bridge with­
out knowing its history? For 4i years 
this railway was in our possession. It 
was taken over in April, 1950.  The 
evidence  of the Chief Engineer is 
something like saying that the history 
of the most dangerous criminal was 
unknown to the Police Commissioner.
On the face of this report, it would 

appear tnat the main cause for this 
disaster was the smugnê and com­
placency of highly placed engineers 
’Whose responsibility wag to ensure the
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safexy of the* t>ermanent way.  I wiir 
read from the Way and Works Manual 
of the Indian Railways.  Para. 11 il 
dealing with behaviour of rivers saysr 

“The  Divisional/District  Enni- 
neer and Assistant Engineer should 
acquaint themselves with the past 
history of every important bridge 
and its protection works and the 
behaviour of the river, in order Xm 
ensure its safe condition.”
This is laid down under the rules.. 
The only two engineers to whom the 
history of the bridge w«s not know* 
happened to be the Chief Engineer and 
the Deputy Chief Engineer. The main, 
cause for this disaster is, I repeat, the 
smugness and complacency of highly 
placed officials. It was their responsi­
bility to see that the permanent way 
is safely maintained and also efficientljr 
maintained.
I would like to say a word about tke- 

Railway Board.  It is the supreme 
executive of the Indian Railways.  I 
would like to read out from the Chief 
Inspector of Railways Report about- 
the Railway Board and their powers: 

“The  Railway . Board  still 
continue to exercise the powers 
of the Central Government under 
the Indian Railways Act and after 
considering the CJovernment In­
spector of Railways’ recommenda* 
tions,  accord  sanction  to  work 
bearing on the safety of the travel­
ling public such as opening of new 
lines for the carriage of passen­
gers,  use  of  new  locomotives,
rolling stock.......” etc.
They are the supreme authority and 
they too must share the responsibility. 
They cannot escape their share of res­
ponsibility in so far as the Board failed 
to ask the Chief Inspector of Rail­
ways to test the bridges at the time 
of taking over from the Nizam in 
April,  1950.  If i'le Railway Board 
relied on the :;afety cf bridges as they 
existed on the Nizam’s railway, then 
they must bear their share of the 
responsibility  for  the  first  biggest 
disaster in the history of the Indiaa 
Railways.
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t«ctioB to the other. Each patrol­
man and watchman shall be pro­
vided with the following equip­
ment which be has to carry:  One 
staff, one tin containing 12 detona­
tors,  one  tricolour hand signal 
lamp, one hurricane lamp, one set 
of hand signal flags, patrol book 
and one extra tin.”

Only Goddess Durga can do this.

I do not want to take more of the- 
time of the House.  I can do no better- 
than repeat what the Prime Minister 
said the other day, that explanations 
will be given and excuses found, but- 
no excuse is good enough.  ̂̂

Mr. Speaker: Motion moved 
“That the Report of the Govern­

ment Inspector of Railways on the 
derailment of 319 Down Express 
at a girder bridge between Jan- 
gaon and Raghunathapalli Stations 
on  the  27th  September,  1954, 
resulting in the death of 136 per­
sons, bfe taken into consideration.” 
Shri  Nambiar  (Ma3ruram):  Mr..

Speaker, it is with a sorrowful heart 
that I have to approach the issue. 
After the able speech made by Shri 
Feroze Gandhi, difficulty is less for us. 
But, I would say that after the acci­
dent of 27th November, 1954, which 
we are discussing now, we have had. 
two further accidents, one in Septem­
ber, 1956 and the latest one on 23rd 
November, 1956.
Shri Feroze Gandhi: May I interrupt 

and ask whether I will have a right 
to reply to the Minister? That is why* 
I have finished quickly. •

Mr. Speaker:  I shall consider the
request.

Shri Nambiar: After the submission 
of this report by the Inspector in 
December, 1954, two years have passed 
and nothing has been done to improve 
the permanent way and the duties of 
the Engineering department.  This is 
obviously  clear.  Otherwise,  the 
Mehboobnagar accident and the latest 
Ariyalur  accident  would  not  have 
happened. Shri Feroze Gandhi has ex­
plained clearly what are the duties of 
the Engineering department from top-

I want to say something about what 
my hon. friend, Mr. Anthony, said the 
otiier day. Everybody tries to thrust 
the  responsibility  on  the  smallest; 
whenever you cannot blame anyone, 
you get hold of the ohaprasi.  Mr. 
Anthony threw the responsibility the 
other day on class IV staff and refer­
red to the indiscipline among them. I 
would like to read out the duties of 
the patrolmen. Even the Chief Inspec­
tor of Railways came to the conclusion 
that this was not humanly possible to 
perform. The recommendation of the 
Chief Inspector of Railways was that 
the beats of patrolmen or the number 
of their rounds containing as much as 
18 miles walk per night should be 
reduced.  Remember, it is 18 miles 
walk in rain and storm; whether he 
has worked in the day time or not, 
he should go. What would the man 
be paid for it? The rule which was in 
force on the 27th September, 1954, was 
that “the Muccadam and the gangman, 
who attend to such patrolling work 
shall be paid extra wages at the rate 
of 4 annas and 2 annas and 8 pies res­
pectively per night”. 4 annas to the 
Muccadam and 2 annas and 8 pies to 
tiie  gangman  were  the  rates  for 
patrolling.  These  were  the  rules 
enforced at that time. Why were these 
rules enforced, I ask. It was because 
the Chief Engineer could not enforce 
the Way and Works Manual of the 
Indian Railways.  This is what the 
Chief Engineer said. The Chief Engi­
neer, Shri N. M. Thadani, said that 
the Ways and Works Manual issued 
by the Railway Board in April this 
year, i.e. 9 months ago, had not yet 
been fully implemented. With a view 
to implement the Manual fully, the 
individual  chapters  were  being 
examined by the deputies in the mean­
time.

I would like to read out how a 
patrolman patrols.  This is very im­
portant and it is laid down in the Way 
and  Works  Manual  of the  Indian 
Railways.

“Para. 1712. Patrolman on each 
permanent way inspector’s section 
should be consecutively from one



3001 Motion re. 5 D£CEM]§ER 1956 Report of the Govern­
ment Inspector of Rail­
ways on Derailment of 
819 Dovon Express

2002

[Shri Nambiar]

4o bottom. If these things were not 
-enough to safeguard the railway line, 
«they should have put more men on 
-the line and they should have im­
proved the vigilance and tĥn they 
ôuld have averted this tragedy.  It 
is very clear that they have not done 
it.
Coming to the report of the Inspec­

tor, he holds nobody responsible pri­
marily. This is his iieport. He says that 
the accident might have been averted 
if the P.W. gang had gone out on 
patrol duty—̂I am quoting—"but I do 
not consider that it could have been 
averted by the  patrolman according 
to the timings prescribed for him.’ If 
what hB submitted was correct and if 
it was properly understood by the 
Railway Board, the Railway Board 
would have improved  the vigilance. 
'They should have ordered the District 
Engineer to be on the line when there 
is heavy rain. They should have asked 
the Engmeering department to appoint 
more patrolmen.  In  the  case of the 
latest Ariyalur accident, from the state­
ment that the hon. Minister made in this 
House,, it was clear that only one 
patrolman  was  on  duty  between 
Ariyalur and Kallagam on one side 
and another patrolman on the other 
side. For 10 miles these two men were 
walking and two trips a night. They
* were making 20 miles of walking. If 
the report of the previous Jangaon 
accident had been looked into, the 
same patrolling method would not 
have been there in Ariyalur and the 
Ariyalur  tragedy  could  have  been 
averted  .

Not only that.  In Ariyalur, the 
Tehsildar of the locality gave infor­
mation on the previous day that tanks 
were breaching and therefore vigilance 
should be improved on the railway 
line. In spite of that, the P.Ŵ Inspec­
tor or the Sub-Inspector did not care 
to trolley their sectioii and find out 
the trouble. It was exactly three miles 
from the headquarters of the P.W. 
In̂ ctor and the Sub-Inspector that 
the accident took place, when the 
T.W. Inspector and the Sub-Inspector

were saiely sleeping at home.  They 
never cared that there was rain all 
the three days. They never cared to 
go on the line.

Shri Alagesan:  Are we discussing
the Hyderabad accident or,
Mr. Speaker: We are discussing the 
Mehboobnagar accident.

Shri Nambiar;  We are discussing 
the Jangaon accident that occurred 
two years ago. The Jangaon report is 
now before the House for discussion.

Mr. Speaker: Not Ariyalur.

Shri Nambiar: Why I am submit­
ting about Ariyalur accident here is, 
if, from the facts made available in 
this report in December,  1954, the 
Railway Board and the Engineers had 
realised  their  responsibilities  and 
corrected the mistake, this Ariyalur 
or the Mehboobnagar accident would 
not have happened. .

Not only that. These officers neglect­
ed their duty.  Train accident occur­
red.  After the accident, they never 
leamt a lesson, they never corrected 
themselves. Not only that, they erect 
an iron curtain around them and they 
never  allow  others  to  understand 
things.  They never allow, or reluc­
tantly agree to have a judicial enquiry. 
In the Mehboobnagar case, a judicial 
enquiry was not allowed.  They said 
. that Inspector’s report will be pursued 
by a judicial person.  Here also m 
Ariyalur, they reluctantly allowed it. 
We are not sure whether the judicial 
enquiry is going to be an open enquiry 
or a secret enquiry as it was done m 
Kalka. Here, the responsibility of the 
Board is such that they would not 
allow even the public to know the 
matter. If the public had an oppor­
tunity to know that this was the 
situation in which the Jangaon acci­
dent happened, the public would have 
pressed on the Railway Board and the 
Government and the Railway Ministry 
to improve the situation and these two 
tragedies could have been averted. 
That is exactly why I submit that the 
Railway Board is to be primarily held 
responsible. The Railway Board must
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be held responsible. The Chief Engi­
neer and the Deputy Chief Engineer 
must be held responsible.  Not only 
that.  The Inspectorate on the spot 
should have taken care to avoid such 
a situation.
About Class IV people, Shri Feroze 
Gandhi has explained. I have no brief 
for Class IV staff even if they neglect 
their duty.  Here, from the evidence . 
and from the facts marshalled by the 
Inspector, you cannot fix the responsi­
bility on Class IV staff because he says 
that even the patrolman could not 
liave avoided it. Therefore, if you do 
not exactly find out the culprit, if you 
don’t find out the real cause of the 
accident  and if  you  run  after a 
shadow, after the most under-dog, if 
you hunt after the shadow, you won’t 
get the real person and you won’t 
correct the mistake. Thereby you will 
allow more accidents to occur and 
more people will die.  That is the 
<difficulty.  It  is not a  question of 
defending the interests of Class IV 
staff. It is a question of finding out 
the exact person who is responsible. 
That is why I submit that in the case 
•of Jangaon as well as in the case of 
Ariyalur, where I know personally, it 
is the persons who are higher up who 
are responsible, from the facts, not at 
my command, on my own initiative, 
T)ut from the facts submitted by the 
hon.  Minister in  this very House. 
Therefore I submit that they must be 
hauled up...
Shri Frank Anthony (Nominated— 

Anglo-Indians): Hanged.
Shri Nambiar:  If they are to be

hanged, they must be hanged; there is 
no question.  One hundred and fifty 
one lives in Ariyalur, is no joke. Men, 
women and children; their dead bodies 
you did not see. None of the Members 
here did see. I saw. It is a pathetic 
sight.  Nobody with a human heart 
will be satisfied unless the men who 
are responsible for this are hanged 
literally.  Why  should  Shri  Frank 
Anthony hold a brief for these people,
I do not understand. It is,—I may be 
excused—fer the reason that he is a 
member here that is feeling so; I do
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not know. I do not care for such posts 
or  power.  Such  people  must  be 
hanged.  I know the men who lost 
their wives and children refused to go 
away from the spot. When the doctors 
came and said, you must go away, 
they said, no, what about our wives 
and children, we can’t go.  I know 
mothers weeping like that. When that 
is the case, the persons who are res­
ponsible in the Jangaon accident, in 
the Mehboobnagar accident and the 
Airyalur accident must be hauled up. 
We want to have an open enquiry. 
We want to be associated with the 
judicial enquiry.  Members of Parlia­
ment or whoever it may be, non­
officials. We want to see the truth. We 
want that such accidents should not 
recur in our country. That is all. We 
are not after smybody’s blood. But, if 
blood is required, if certain men are 
to be hanged, they must be hanged, 
they must be hanged.
Shri Frank Anthony: Mr. Speaker, 

I waited deliberately for intervening 
in this debate for the hon. Communist 
Member  to  deliver  himself of his 
speech which I expected would savour 
more of abuse than of sense. I do not 
wish to reply to the unbecoming and 
quite  gratuitous  remark  that  my 
friend,  in his tirade*  also directed 
against me. He said I hold a brief on 
behalf of some particular class of 
railwaymen.  Let me say  with  all 
humility to my learned friend that he 
will  require  to  traverse  numerous 
incarnations  before he leams even 
remotely what I have fôJĵen about 
the subordinate railwaying- that he 
wiU  require  even  more  numerous 
incarnations  before  he  attempts  to 
challenge to represent on behalf of 
the subordinate railwaymen what it 
has been my privilege to do in the 
last twenty years.
What my friend has sought to do— 
and I expected he would seek to do 
it—is to use this occasion to only to 
beat one particular class of railway 
workers. I believe that I am able to 
bring to bear, for many reasons, an 
approach that it is impossible for my 
friend Shri Nambiar to attempt to 
bring  to  bear  on  these  problems.
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[Shri Frank Anthony]
There is always a danger of i»Ur- 
preting a report like this from a parti­
cular angle, of trying to press into 
service material in order to argue a 
particular point of view, and there is 
always this danger, because it is not 
a danger, it is a habit of speech with 
my friend Shri Nambiar of indulging 
in facile, unwarranted generalisations 
and attempting to arrive at conclu­
sions which ar*» not based on facts.
We are deplore this kind of thing, but 
it is never a justification for being 
overborne completely, for completely 
losing one’s sense of balance or pers­
pective. It is very easy for us after 
an accident of this kind to become 
smug, to be wise after the event, to 
attempt to see things, as the Ameri­
cans would say, from a hind sight.

A large part of this report deals 
with technical matters. I will not pre­
sume, as my friend Shri Nambiar 
apparently  has presumed, to be a 
technical expert and to conclude that 
the only conclusion or the only result 
at which we must arrive is to hang 
the Chief Engineer and the Deputy 
Chief Engineer. The Inspector has set 
out thf history of this bridge. He has 
also said that the file of the  Chief 
Engineer dealing, specifically with this 
partici lar bridge has been unfortu­
nately lost. That file would have told 
us p’ecisely the technical and other 
cons; derations which went into the 
particular  remedial  measures which 
were adopted in 1940.  Probably my 
friend Shri Feroze Gandhi has some 
ter tinical knowledge, but I do not wish 
tf  rush in where perhaps technical 
experts and engineers would be afraid 
)o tread.

The conclusion that has been arrived 
at—I want to deal with this in an 
objective and fairly judicial manner— 
by the Inspector is this, that in 1940 
the  railway  administration  should 
have rebuilt the abutments and pier 
Nos. 1 and 2 on deeper foundations. 
He has dealt with the different cate­
gories of staff. My friend Shri Feroze 
Gandhi has said that obviously the 
Chief Engineer ai>d the Deputy Chief

Engineer must be held culpable.  If 
that is the correct view, then I would 
be thtt first to say that they should be 
indicted and punished to the maxi­
mum extent.  The Inspector has not 
given us the benefit of his views in 
this connection.  Certainly the Chief 
Engineer was culpable to this extent 
that he apparently was not aware ef 
the history of this bridge. The Deputy- 
Chief Engineer also tells us that eveit 
when  he looked at the  InspTection 
Register, the part referring to this; 
particular bridge was overlooked by 
him. To that extent they are certainly 
culpable.  I am sorry there was no 
judicial enquiry in this matter, because 
a Judge aided by experts would have 
been able to conclude, not in the un­
balanced way that my friend Shri 
Nambiar  has  concluded;  he  would 
have been able to conclude as to what 
is the culpability with regard to the- 
crux of this matter on the part of the 
Chief Engineer.  I am not holding a 
brief him, and say this, that there is 
not a tendency, there is a complex, in. 
the railway administration; it is almost 
a tradition for them to cover up for 
their Class I officers. Much more often,, 
and I believe with much greater capa­
city,  I  haviB  indicted  the  railway 
administration, more often than Shri 
Nambiar could have ever done, for 
having  this  particular  complex  of 
covering  up  their  Class  I  officers. 
There is this tradition for shoving the 
responsibility from Class I to others, 
and I say if we can fix the responsi­
bility on the Chief Engineer and the 
Deputy Chief Engineer, they should 
be sacked, because the higher the res­
ponsibility the higher should be the 
measure of punishment with which 
they must be visited, but let us arrive 
at these conclusions objectively.
Shri Ferez#̂ Gandhi: Fixing of res­

ponsibility  is,  only possible if this 
report is handed over to a judicial 
officer. An engineer cannot do that.
Shri Frank Anthony: Precisely.  It 

is only a person who approaches this 
judiciously, analyses precisely what is 
the nature of the duties of the Chief 
Engineer, what is the nature of  the
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t̂ies of the Deputy Chief Engineer, 
ihat can come to conclusions. Assum­
ing that the Chief Engineer was to 
blame for  not  acquainting  himself 
vf<rith the history of this bridge, assum­
ing that the Deputy Chief Engineer 
was to blame, will a judicial body say 
that their duties are such that they 
must have concluded, if they were 
reasonable persons, that this bridge 
was vulnerable? If that is the judicial 
finding after assessing their duties, 
after  assessing the facts, I say  the 
least punishment that should be meted 
out to the Chief Engineer and the 
Deputy Chief Engineer is that they 
should be sacked.  But the point is 
this. You have to refer it to a body 
that will assess the matter objectively, 
that will assess it accurately in the 
<!ontext of all the facts. I am not in a 
position to say that the Chief Engi­
neer or the Deputy Chief Engineer 
were bound to know, if they had taken 
the trobule to acquaint themselves 
with the facts, that this bridge was 
dangerous. If they were, then I say 
1»he maximum punishment must be 
visited on them.

I regret that while we have under­
lined the responsibility of the Class I 
officers—I do not regret the under­
lying  of  their  responsibility—̂the
speeches so far tend to apologise for 
the responsibility of the Class IV.  I 
do not apologise for any category of 
staff.  I  say  here  that  we  must 
definitely resist this tendency in the 
railway administration to cover up for 
its Class I officers. I know that there 
iire many Class I officers who are not 
•only lazy, not only incompetent; but 
they are emasculated not only physi­
cally but mentally. Get at them, punish 
them. But I would say this also, that 
as a class today—and I say it cate­
gorically—this  general  tendency  to 
lack of  responsibility is more  pro­
nounced among the Class IV staff, and 
we will be doing not only a disservice 
to the railway administration, we are 
domg an injury when we apologise in 
that way. I am not holding a brief, as 
Jny friend says without understanding
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what he was talking about, for liiis 
class or that.

Shrimati Reiiv CbakraTartty (Basir- 
hat): As if he has all the wisdom?

Shri  Frank  Anthony:  In these 
matters I presimie to be much wiser 
than my friend Shri Nambiar.

Shri Nambiar:  You are.  Let the
House take a decision.

Shri Frank Anthony:  If you hold
the Chief Engineer ai\d the Deputy 
Chief Engineer responsible, sack them. 
Here the Inspector—unless you believe 
that  his  report  was  deliberately 
biassed—has not come to that con­
clusion with regard to the Chief Engi­
neer and the Deputy Chief Engineer. 
He has only come to the conclusioa 
as to the fault that was committed in 
1940. What I feel is to some extent 
condemnable is this, that we should 
close our eyes to this.  Here is the 
conclusion:

“I am of opinion that the acci­
dent might have been averted if 
the P.W.D. gang had gone out on 
patrolling duty.”

Here I feel that Shri Gandhi has 
misconceived the issue.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: No, Sir.

Shri Frank Anthony:  I may be at
one  with him if he says that  the 
patrolman gets only two annas, give 
him two rupees or four rupees a 
night, but the point is that the Inspec­
tor has arrived at the conclusion that 
this accident might have been averted 
if the Mukaddam and the gangmenhad 
done their duty. That is a specific con­
clusion. Let us not blink at these facts 
as my hon. friends do, whose business 
is to blink at these facts.

Shri Nambiar:  Why do you read
only half the sentence? Why do you 
not read the full sentence?

Shri  Frank  Anthony:  He  says
further:

. .but I do not consider that 
it could have been averted by 
Patrolman,..”

My hon. friend does not even bother 
to analyse it.
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Shri Nambiar: You read further.

Shri Frank Anthony:  It is not a
matter for laughing.  My hon. friend 
has not understood it.

Shri Nambiar:  The inspector has
said that the patrolman could not have 
averted it.

Shri Frank Anthony: I can only feel 
sorry for my hon. friend’s incapacity 
to understand it.

Shri Feroze Gandhi:  Would  you
allow me to clarify it?

Sliri Frank Anthony: I shall clarify 
it.  After all, I have a certain legal 
training.

Mr. Speaker:  The report is before
all hon. Members.

Shri Frank Anthony: Yes, the report
is before all hon. Members.

Now, what are the conclusions of 
the inspector with regard to patrol­
ling? He starts at page 14 with the 
statement that special patrolmen were 
appointed. Then, he concludes at page
16 by saying that there were three 
special patrolmen, and each man had 
a beat of 2J miles. You may say that 
the duties were excessive; each man 
had to cover his beat of 2̂ miles three 
times after a rest of two hours. And 
what is the conclusion of the inspector? 
His conclusion is that everyone of 
them had lied, and that not one of 
these patrolmen was on duty, not one 
of the three special patrolmen was on 
duty.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: That is wrong.

Shri Frank Anthony:  Here is the
conclusion at page 15.

Shn Fercree Gandhi: I have got here 
the Minister’s answer to my question.

Shri Frank Anthony: I am dealing 
with the report.

Mr. Speaker: The hon. Member may 
kindly note down the points,

Shri Feroze Gandhi: Are you going 
to give me a chance?
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Mr. Speaker:  If J cannot allow a
chance  later, I would not  allow a 
chance now.

Shri Frank Anthony:  Here is his
conclusion. As I said, let us not blink 
at facts.  Let us place the responsi­
bility on everyone’s shoulders.  Here 
is the conclusion at paige 15:

“In view of the observations in 
sub-paras, (b) and (c), I am of 
the opinion that up to the time 
at which the accident took place, 
patrolling of the section between 
Jangaon  and  Raghunathpalli 
stations was not being done on 
27th September 1954 in accord­
ance with Circular No. 201___”

Actually, this number is a misprint. 
It should be circular No. 202, because 
that circular says:

‘The Permanent Way Inspec­
tor should point out to each patrol­
man all portions of the road on 
his beat needing special notice and 
the  Permanent  Way  Inspector 
should  remind  Muccadums  to 
direct the inspection of the patrol­
man in a similar manner.”

There were three special patrolmen 
appointed. And his conclusion is that 
they had all lied.  The drivers had 
given their evidence that there were 
no patrolmen there; not one of these 
three patrolmen was on duty. That is. 
one conclusion to which he arrives.

In addition to the special patrolmen̂ 
there were the gang muccadams. Here 
comes the other rule, namely subsi­
diary rule 213 which reads:

“Gang  Muccadams  should,  if 
necessary, arrange for the patrol­
ling of their sections if at anŷ 
time in the fair season heavy raini 
occurs...”

Here, again, the muccadam has lied. 
Everyone has said that the rain was 
. not only excessive, but it was exces­
sively heavy. But the gang muccadam 
had not taken the trouble, as he was 
bound, to do patrolling. That is an­
other point, apart from the fact that
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interpret the conclusions arrived at. 
The only conclusion of guilt here iŝ 
the conclusion of guilt against the lack, 
of patrolling by the patrolmen. My 
hon. friend has only referred to one 
patrolman not being responsible. But 
the fact is that there should have been 
there on duty three patrplmen; then,, 
there should have there the muccadam 
and his gangmen.

There is one other matter to which 
I wish to refer, I am not satisfied that 
the speed of the train had nothing to 
do with t’lis accident. I do not say 
that it was the primary cause or the 
secondary cause. But this is a matter* 
which must receive the attention gI 
the  Railway  Administration.  The 
inspector  has  concluded  that  this 
particular train was travelling at about 
53 miles per hour. Now, the track is 
notoriously bad on these former State 
Railways and also on the Southern 
Railway. And it is my humble opinion 
as a layman that in many parts the 
track cannot carry these ‘WP’ engineŝ 
travelling at above 50 miles per hour.
In this particular case, he says that it 
was the usual speed, and it was travel­
ling at about 53 miles per hour.

Dr. Jaisoorya (Medak):  I have just- 
heard Shri Frank Anthony, the counsel 
for the defence, but I have not been 
impressed. The reason is this. We are 
here today to enquire into the technical 
and ether causes that led to the heavy 
losses of life,  through accidents on 
railways.  If  it  were  one  single* 
accident, however bad it  may be, it 
would not have caused us to think sO' 
much, but every accident where a loss 
of even one man’s life is involved must 
be  considered fully.  We have  had 
three such major accidents, the Jan- 
gaon accident, the Mahboobnagar acci­
dent and the Ariŷ ur accident.

I want you to consider the extraordi­
nary  similarity or  identity of  the 
pattern in these three accidents. In the 
Jangaon accident, the bridge gave way 
owing to heavy rains, and the train got 
derailed.  It was absolutely the same 
pattern* two years later at Mahboob- 
nagar;  there were heavy rains,

there was no patrolling whatsoever 
either by the special patrolmen who 
had been appointed or by the mucca­
dam and his gangmen. There was no 
patrolling done whatsoever, and that 
is why he has come to the conclusion: 

“I am of the opinion that the 
accident might have been averted 
if the P.W. Gang had gone out on
patrolling duty.”.........
That is precisely what I have said.
I said that in this House the other day, 
and I said that without even having 
looked at this report. I was talking on 
principle. If, in the final analysis, a 
biid̂ collapses, or a track subsides, 
who  can prevent  it?  In  the first 
instance, if you say that the Chief 
Engineer could have pinpointed it, he 
could be held responsible. But imme­
diately,  who  is  responsible?  Who 
inspects the track?  My hon. friend 
referred to the South Indian thing. 
There you have two gangmen to one 
mile. They are the men on the spot. 
If, instead of patrolling at night, as 
they are bound to patrol, they are 
sleeping at home, it is not the busi­
ness of the P.W.D. to inspect. He has 
a hundred-mile-beat on the Southern 
Railway. It is for your two gangmen 
>̂ 0 have one mile between them to 
inspect every inch every day and aU 
night, if necessary.

Here, there should have been there 
the three patrolmen.  There should 
have been there the muccadam and 
his gangmen. But not one of them was . 
on duty. That is why he has said that 
if they  had patrolled, this  accident 
might have been averted. That is his 
conclusion.
He places this guilt objectively, he 

fixes it on the lack of patrolling.  It 
is not the P.W.D.  or  the Assistant 
Engineer who is supposed to patrol. 
As I said, let us look at these things 
fairly. I do not defer to anyone in my 
condemnation of class I officers, when 
it is necessary, or even of class II 
officers. But why do you cover up for 
these people who today are destroying 
our railways by their indiscipline and 
their growing sense of indiscipline? 
You are covering up for it. You mis-



2013 Motion re. 5 DECEMBER

[Dr. Jaisoorjra]
r̂idfe 0ave wslj and the train got de­
railed. So far as the Ariyalur accident
is concerned, I have not seen the site, 
but the picture that I have been given 
is identical.  So, if some centlemaa 
in the Upper House gets up and says 
that these accidents are Acts of God, 
j would only say, very well, let them 
be accidents of God or Acts of God, 
but under very suspicious circumstan- 
*ces.  It is not like that.

I am Riven to understand that even 
in totalitarian  countries, they  have 
got what they call self-criticism. Now, 
it will be a very salutary thing for 
'Government’s in democracies also to 
have a certain amoimt of self-criticism 
:and not  advocacy by Shri  Frank 
.Anthony, of this type.  Now,  let us 
find out what has happened.  Why did 
it happen that  there  were  three 
major disasters in the history of our 
railways, within a period of two and a 
half years. It is not a question of try­
ing to hang somebody, but it is our 
duty to find out why there were three 
such major  disasters.  To  my mis- 
dFortune, i happen to know something 
about the railways. I have taken some 
interest in them.  We have to find out 
whether it was due to material defect, 
or due to the human factor of error 
of  gross  negligence.  We  have  to 
•assess  these things, so that in the 
tuture. we shall not be witnesses to or 
be guilty of such disastrous accidents. 
We have  got only one thing to go 
upon, and that is the report of the 
Government  Inspector,  and  I  am 
grateful to Shri Alagesan who had the 
courtesy to send me a copy, because 
it was not available anywhere else. 
Imagine that on such a serious thing 
as this, where a report of this type 
should be in the hands of every Mem­
ber who is  interested, we find that 
copies are not available; a few copies 
have  only now been  placed in the 
Xibrary.  That is not the way,

Shri  Sinhasan  Singh  (Gorakhpur 
Distt—South):  That is another acci­
dent. •
Dr. Jaisoorya: I am not very happy 

-over the ambiguity of this report.
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My hon. friend, Shri Anthony, the 
counsel for defence, is relying 100 p#r 
cent, on this. But I am given to under­
stand by Shri T. B. Vittal Rao, ae 
hon. Member  who never makes  a , 
statement without facts, that this int' 
pector is one of the juniormost in this 
category.  Is that correct?

Shri T. B. Vittal Rae: Quite correct.

Dr. Jaisoorya: After I read this, I, 
was rather surprised, because, again 
to my misfortune, I happen to know 
the problems of the  Secunderabad 
Division of the Central Railway better 
than the  hon. gentleman  who has 
made this  Report, better  also tha» 
some gentleman on the Central Rail­
way and, certainly,  better  than the 
gentlemen in  this Ministry or  the 
Railway Board.  I am cominĝ'to that, 
because I am going to hit out.

Let us look at this.  On 27th Sep­
tember  1954, the 319 Down Express 
left Secunderabad,  m this Report, it 
is not even mentioned as to when did 
this 319  Down leave  Secundwabad 
station. Imagine an inspector not tak­
ing it down, because it has much tc 
do with the assessment of speed.  I 
took the trouble to find out when this 
319 Down left on 27th September 1954.
It was held up 35 minutes.  According 
to the report of Armstrong, who was 
a driver, one of the seniormost drivers, 
a very experienced driver, a man who 
knew former rules very well—I am 
coming to that now—he was crossiafl 
the bridge at 40 miles an hour. Surana 
says that the average estimated speed 
was 53 miles an hour.  If you look at 
the estimated time when it crossed the 
bridge, it was 22; 50 hours.  In other 
words, the train was speeding.  And 
what was the reason for that? To our 
misfortune, on that day, Loco Inspector 
Green  was testing time punctuality 
and running time.
Now,  this has a very  important 
bearing of which these hon. gentlemet; 
knew nothing,  which Shri Anthony, 
the counsel for defence,  also knew 
nothing about. It is this. There is such 
a thing known as Llyod Jones’ Rule.
I would like to ask the hon. Member or
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thtt members of the RaUway Board 
whether they know anything about 
Uoyd Jones’ Rule, a  standing rule, 
and why was it made?  Uoyd Jones’ 
Rule laid down  that when there is 
heavy rain for more than 24 hours, it 
is the duty of the engine driver to 
enquire  from  the  nearest  station 
where bridges are in danger, as to the 
state of the bridges.  Secondly, he has 
to stop when there is persistent rain 
and personally  inspected the bridge, 
what the level of the water is and so 
on.  Thirdly, he has to go over that 
bridge at not more than 5 miles an 
hour.  This is known as the  Lloyd 
Jones* Standing Rule and this is the 
rule that has prevented major acci­
dents uptil now on our line, on the 
ex-Nizam  Stete  Railway  line.  Al­
though, as Shri Feroze Gandhi  has 
clearly pointed out,  that bridge has 
been damaged several times and our 
line has been  washed  away,  also 
several  times,  we' never had such 
terrible  and  catastrophic  disasters 
which are a disgrace to our coimtry 
as these.  These two major accidents 
have taken  place  there,  on the ex- 
Nizam’s lines.

Now here  was  a  sen’or  engine 
driver who knew the  Lloyd Jones’ 
Rule and the fact thit it was gradient 
downward, one in 200.  I know that 
area better than the gentlemen sitting 
here.  I know the track inch by inch. 
That was a vulnerable bridge.  My 
hon. friend, the counsel for defence, 
does not know that.  The  Miaistiy 
also does not know that. Before 1946, 
there was a liaison between the Rail­
way and the  district  officers of the 
Governments of the States  through 
which these lines went.  The liaison 
rules laid down that in the event of 
heavy rains, where there were tanks, 
the village headmen had to report to 
the  Tahsildar that the  tanks were 
filling and  water was rising to the 
surface and overflowing.  Again, the 
Tahsildar informs the police officials. 
The police officials used to send word 
to the nearest railway station to the 
effect, “Take care.  These tanks are 
filling and  overflowing.  There  is 
danger of bursting”.
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Now, I Want to ask the hon. Minis­
ter and the Railway Board whether 
that liaison is still there.  I say it is 
not there.  Why? At least when the 
previous government was there, they 
had overall control in such matters, 
but our present States are each of 
them independent. Even our wonder­
ful Health Minister cannot êt fact*;. 
Every  time I ask a question,  she 
replies;  “What  am  I  to  do?  The 
Sidles do not give me facts”.

Now, this is the  main  cause, not 
what my hon. friend, Shri  AntMiy, 
the counsel for defence, has stated. 
If we want to prevent such accidents 
in future, we will have to re-lntro- 
duce the system of liaison. The Tahsil 
dar must be made  responsible for 
passing on the information. The rail­
way authorities must be informed in 
time about these things.

About bursting of tanks, we who 
come from Telangana know far better

V  than the gentlemen sitting in Ddht 
that there is always danger of tanks 
bursting.  In spite of the  wise and 
learned statements made in the Re> 
port—I can manufacture any number 
of statements like this—̂the fact re­
mains that in 1939, three tanks bunt 
and damaged the bridge.

If you look into the evidence, I do 
not know what to  say  about  this 
junior officer. I feel ashamed to read 
that Repojl; there is conflicting evi­
dence. I do not want to repeat it. Even 
at 21.00 hours, the last  driver  who 
passed over the bridge gave evidence 
which was hardly worth anjrthing. He 
could see the buttresses’. And  then 
what happened? The tanks burst

Remember that when  rivers  rise 
higher up, flood is  imminent.  They 
wire down. To Bezwada from above, 
they say:  ‘Take care. The river is 
rising”. Now here in the evidence, one 
mjui says: “I hardly saw a trickle”. 
Then  one  Ramadu—some  fellow— 
says that it was two feet under the 
bridge. My calculation shows that the 
bridge is 13’ 6” above the river bed. 
In the evidence, Armstrong makes no 
reference as to what the level was.
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[J>r. Ĵ oorŷ]
This is surprising, the way questions 
are put and answered.

is one C .̂ D’Souza. Of all 
the  survivors,  only  Capt.  D’Souza 
gave evidence. Th«re was Mr. M. R. 
Krishna, Member of  Parliament,  in 
the ŝ m̂ trŝin. Why was he not call­
ed? Why was not evidence taken from 

hiin?
Again, I  cannot  understand  the 

. doings of this jimior officer, on whom 
my hon. friend places much  reliance 
and importance.  He never even en­
quired as to M̂at were the total num­
ber of tickets sold. He should have 
certified the total number of tickets 
sold. I will explain why it is impor­
tant. In the recent Mehboobnagar ac­
cident, I had one advantage which I 
•did not have last time. I got all the 
factual figures  of  the  number  of 
tickets sold from Secunderabad up to 
. Ja4cherla. By that time, the authori­
ties woke up n̂d kept the number of 
tickets sold at  âdcherla  a  closely 
gû dfd secret But, when the official 
figures of the  deaths  at  Mehboob­
nagar cftme in the neî debate, if and 
wĥ it t̂ es place, and if I happen 
to be in tĥs House, I shall challenge 
those figures based on the numb̂ of 
tickets sold from the various book­
ing offices and show that they are far 
in excess of the official figiires.
16 hrs.
An hon. Member: They always are.
Dr. Jaisoorya: I am giving facts as 
they stand. I am not here  to  indict 
anybody but I am certainly here to 
indict this youngster who has written 
this report as not helping in assessing 
exactly how we are going to prevent 
further accidents. This  report  came 
out on the 17th Pecember,  1954 and 
aU this time the Railway Board has 
had time to study it. But what did 
they do? May I tell you one thing? I 
am saying it with a broken  heart, 
because I know facts which my hon. 
friend the  Defence  Council  cannot 
controvert, that inspection tours have 
takei place—several tours.
Mr.  Speaker:  The  remarks  lose
their value; here and there humour 
is permitted.

Report of Govern­
ment Inspector of Rail­
ways on Derailment of 
319 Down Express

2018

r̂. Jsusoorya: I have never heard 
such a speech as my hon. friend’s. It 
is a volte ffice.  I am coniing to that.

Here we are dealing with facts. Ins­
pections have taken place. The his­
tory of that bridge has disappeared. 
The Chief Engineer Mr. Thadani gives 
evidence and says that he did not 
know anything about it. Yet he quotes 
also from the Works and Ways Manu­
al.  Funny!  If he had done that he 
should also have known that it was 
his bounden duty to have found out 
everything about it.  In  1939  Mr. 
Aibara had drawn attention  to  this 
and nothing was done. Because  re­
pairs took place in 1940, they relied 
upon it as eternal. Their duty, as laid 
down, is that every year an inspection 
has to take place. Accidents can hap­
pen; there can always be the human 
factor and error of judgement.  But 
when that accident took place they 
should have waked up  to the fact 
that  they  should  examine  every 
bridge on the ex-N.S. Railway. Then, 
the 2nd and 3rd disaster could not 
have happened. I lay the blame  at 
the door of the Ministry and the Rail­
way Board  that  they  have  never 
thought in terms of this because they 
are sitting on Mount Parnassus think­
ing themselves to be wonderful, know­
ing everything, omniscient. I lay the 
blame on them and I hold them mor­
ally and legally responsible for that. 
If they are not capable let them go 
out; I will put better men in their 
place. They have the impertinence to 
suggest that the Railway Board is aa 
autonomous body and that even the 
Minister cannot interfere with it.  I 
would throw them out if I were the 
Minister and I would say, ‘get out, I 
will put new men there’.

An Hon. Meipber:  Unfortunately,
you are not. •
Dr.  Jaisoorya:  My  friend,  Shri
Anthony said, ‘Quite right*.
Mr. Speaker: There are other hon. 
Members who are anxious to speak.

Dr. ,|̂oorya: Sir, this is my last 
point. The man ̂ oû d have gone and 
seen whether the river is rising. Some
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Mallayya Gadu or Ramudu says that 
he saw the river rising. He reported 
it and he was made to retract it. So, 
nobody saw the river rising. I am 
sorry. Do you know the terrific im­
pact of that? It is a small, miserable 
little bridge and the  hon.  Minister 
says, ‘I am surprised how such a terri­
fic thing can happen on such a small 
bridge’. If anybody knows anything of 
the geography and topography,  he 
win realise that these very things are 
dangerous when the tanks burst and 
the rubble comes down like a batter­
ing ram. Here is a big argument—̂it 
was  not  over-flowing.  The fact is 
that the piers had been washed away 
and the  bridge  was  left  hanging. 
Here we have got some  engineers 
taljcing tomfoolery, T̂e fact is that 3 
times within 2 years identical  acci­
dents took place.  If you can console 
yoUrself that this is an act of God, 
but under very suspicious circumstan­
ces. I have nothing to say.

The South German railways  were 
once notorious for accidents and there 
was a cartoon that came out. A man 
wanted to commit suicide and he was 
lying on the railway track and Death 
said to him, ‘if you want to make sure 
of dying, get into the train*.

It is a very sad thing. I do not want 
to indict anybody. But, instead of the 
hon. Minister getting up and  taking 
up cudgels to defend the indefensible, 
he should himself practice  criticism. 
They are'not going to improve any­
thing: we are there to help him. He 
is not even trying to be helpful.  I 
have no use for  smug  complacency 
and no use for swelled  heads  who 
think that they know everything  in 
the world. I am prepared to help.  I 
know something of the railways. You 
can have it free of cost. But, if an­
other similar accident,  should occur 
then, I shall ̂ask for death sentence, 
even on the Minister.

Shri Heda (Nizamabad): Mr. Spea­
ker,  Sir, Dr. Jaisoorya has already 
dealt with some aspects of the topo­
graphy of this area. I think I should 
deal with it further so that one im-
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portant point may be clear to the 
House.

In Telengana, as you know, there 
are small tanks  interspersed every­
where. Practically, every village has 
gji some tank or other.  This river 
Yaswantpuram seems to be a small 
river 9 miles away from that bridge. 
But, in between these 9 miles, this has 
to fill two tanks, Mysamma Cheruvu 
and Yerragunta tanks. The capacity of 
the first tank is 8 million eft. and the 
capacity of the second tank is 5 mil­
lion eft. In the report it is stated thaj 
there is a small stream which origi­
nates from another tank and  joins 
this stream above the bridge. In fact, 
the  report is not  very clear.  The 
stream is not a small one. That stream 
falls into the Yena Cheruvu  tank 
whose  capacity  is  30  million  eft 
Again, this very same stream has got 
two tanks above whose waters also 
join and fall into, this tank. There i*! 
another  tank  yet by  the name  of 
Chennagunta, whose capacity is  li 
million eft. All these tanks were filled. 
The rains there start by the middle of 
June and continue up to the end of 
July. The tanks are generally full. 
This was the month of September and 
that year the rains were very heavy. 
So,  it is not only the actual rain 
water that comes to the bridge.  We 
have also to take into account that it 
is ĵist possible that these tanks may 
breach and in that case the  whole 
water might cc»ne down. This is what 
happened here. The bank of the Yena 
Cheruvu  breached  and  the  whole 
waters of the tank,  30 million eft. 
were drained only in 8 hours.  One 
can imagine how much  water would 
have beoi arriving at the bridge.

There is another thing, and this is 
a very strange thing. Generally, bri- ‘ 
dges are constructed when the course 
of the river is straight. Bridges  are 
not constructed where there is a turn 
in  the river.  But, this  particular 
bridge  was constructed—I  do not
know  why—where  the  river  had 
taken a turn at 60 degrees.
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[Shri Heda]
The new bridge that has now been 

constructed, after this accident,  has 
been constructed at a different place. 
So,  when  a  river  does  not  flow 
straight,  naturally  all  the  waters 
which come in the tank, not only the 
rain water,  will be dashing against 
the piers of the bridge,  and that  is 
why it is no wonder that those two 
piers, which had become vulnerable, 
were demolished.
Another fact in this regard is this, 
that is, the very fact that water had 
gone very much low the same day 
early morning and by the next day 
about  ten  o’clock in the  morning 
practically water not more than knee- 
deep was visible again shows that it 
was not rain water but it was  the 
water from these tanks.  Therefore, 
the Railways, when they maintain the 
history  of  these  bridges  and  the 
rivers, have to think of the  catch­
ment area and of all the tanks have 
developed or go on developing  in 
that catchment area. As is clear from 
this r̂>ort, they had not bothered to 
keep the  history of those  tanks— 
whether the tanks were full or empty 
or whether a new tank had been con­
structed anywhere. They had no pro­
per idea about the flow of the water, 
and,  therefore,  this  disaster  had 
taken place. Had they kept the his­
tory in that way, it would have been 
more than possible that they  would 
have given the necessary caution  so 
far as this bridge was concerned, and 
had the train not tSken that . much 
speed, the accident might have been 
averted.
Another point is this. The report is 

not satisfactory so f?.r qs it deals with 
the aspect of relief measures. Those 
who visited the place next day, those 
who were in the train and were safe 
—one of them, a prominent colleague 
of ours, Shri M. R. Krishna, was there 
—told us that the relief train did not 
come so early as has been mentioned 
in this report. The fact is that the evi­
dence that has been gathered is not 
impartial, is more from official than 
non-official sources. They did not bo­
ther even to gather evidence from the
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non-official sources,  the people,  the 
public who had come over there and 
had known so many things.  So far 
as that matter is concerned, the re­
port looks very partial. No doubt the 
report puts a blame on the relief mea­
sures taken from the other side,  the 
Raghunathpalli side.  Raghunathpalli, 
in fact, could not do anjrthing,  and 
from Kazipet  ahother  relief  train 
came up. The pertinent point here is 
that when the train left Jangaon and 
did not reach Raghunathpalli in ten ' 
or fifteen minutes, the Raghunathpalli 
Station  Master  should  have  been 
alert.  Why did he wait thinking that 
somebody should come to him  and 
report to him and that then only he 
should  do  something?  Even  after 
that he probably did not  think . of 
doing  anything.  He did know  that 
the  train had left Jangaon.  In the 
same way he did know that after the 
train  had  left,  for  15 minutes or 
half  an  hour  the  train  did  not 
reach Raghunathpalli and that some­
thing,  therefore,  was  wrong.  But 
he waited till the lineman rushed to 
him and reported that an accident had 
taken place and that the train was 
not properly visible. Even after that, 
the proper remedy was not  taken, 
which was very very easy.  Raghu­
nathpalli is a big village, and again, 
luckily,  there is a very good road 
connecting Secunderabad and Hanam- 
konda, which is parallel to the rail­
way line. It is a very live road with 
buses,  trucks and so many  things, 
and even after the accident, as well 
as  before  the  accident,  the  road 
iDridge there was intact and he could 
have arranged some remedy, or  he 
himself could have gone to the place 
of accident, but he did not bother to 
do anything, till a relief train came 
from Kazipet.
The same story was  repeated in 
Mehbhoobpagar accident also.  These 
officials do not care to find out what 
is wrong with the train,  why it has 
not arrived in time and even  after 
they knew about it,  they did not 
take the relief• measures as promptly 
as they should have.
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This report is silent over  another 
fact.  The State Government and  the 
State oflEicials were not informed. In 
fact, so far as this accident is con­
cerned,  it  took  place at about  11 
o’clock in the night,  and the State 
officials did not know it till the early 
hours of the next morning. In  fact, 
they  came to ‘ know  about  it not 
through  the  Railway  sources  but 
through other sources,  the persons 
who had come back, the persons who 
had escaped and come back. The cal­
lous attitude of the railway officials in 
providing the reUef,  not  bothering 
Dver the progress the trains are mak­
ing and not trying to get the co-ope- 
ratîn,  help and assistance of  the 
State officials or the local people is 
also a point in this connection. to be 

considered.

One word more and I have done. It 
is a good thing that some report has 
come, because it is just possible that 
if even this report, however meagre 
and unsatisfactory it is, had not been 
there, this discussion or debate might 
not have taken place. There is a very 
strong case for a judicial or non-offi­
cial report on such accidents.  With­
out that, not only the people do not 
get satisfied  but there is always a 
lurking suspicion,  and every  hon. 
Member in this House has given  ex­
pression to his suspicion or apprehen­
sion that the railway officials are try­
ing to shield or cover their own supe­
rior officers or higher officials,  and 
they are trying to shuffle  their res­
ponsibilities.

Therefore, there should not only be 
a judicial enquiry, but some represen­
tatives from the people should also be 
associated in such a report, so that 
the people get a  thorough  satisfac­
tion that their fate or their Uves are 
safe and whatever happens  to them 
has been gone through.

BIr. Speaker: How  long  does the 
hon. Minister propose to take?
The Deputy  Minister of RaUways 
and  Transport  (Shri  Shahnawaz 
Khaa): Half an hour.

Mr. Speaker: I now call on Shri T. 
N. Singh,  and after him I will 'all
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Shri Vittal Rao.  I will then call the 
Minister, and give ten minutes  for 
reply.

Shri T. N. Singh (Banaras Distt.— 
East): I very much welcome such de­
bates because by habit, whatever  I 
have been ablêto do in this Parlia­
ment has been !h the nature of look­
ing at things after long intervals. As 
a member of the  Public  Accounts 
Committee I have had occasions  to 
look into the lapses or deeds or mis­
deeds of every Department.  I  wel­
come it for this reason that there is 
no room for any passions or emotions 
after the event, and one can bring to 
bear logic to facts. That is why I was 
rather unhappy when my friend on 
the opposition got excited. I thoût 
such a discussion was the appropriate 
thing when one could look at things 
logically and soberly and without any 
passion or heat.  Therefore, I would 
very much like this accident, this re­
-port and whatever facts we know to 
be  discussed  very  dispassionately. 
Wherever there are things wrong, we 
should try to remedy them.  Wher­
ever there are no things  wrong, we 
should also not get into a panic. That 
is a very important aspect of any such 
oiquiry.

After reading the report, I got all 
the facts brought forward by Dr. Jai- 
soorya and my filend here, who is a 
local Member  from that area,  and 
then I felt that  there were  certain 
features which must be brought to the 
notice of the House. For instance, the 
report  gives an in-iication that  the 
piers were to blame. Two piers gave 
way and on this,  I believe,  Shri 
Feroze  Gindhi  based  his  entire 
speech. Tyut the fact is that the tanks 
gave way.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: That is not so.

Shri T. N. Singh: That was what
Shrîjl̂da said.

I find from the report that instead 
of 8,000 cusecs,  the normal flow at 
the maximum calculated, there was a 
flow of 20,000 cusecs.

Shri Heda: The piers should have 
been constructed to stand that water.
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Shri T. N. Singh: I am coining to 
that. These are the facts.  I am not 
coming to any conclusion. I do not 
find anything about that in the report. 
These  things  should  be  prbperly 
assessed. What are the facts? How far 
had this flow ccmtributed to this acci­
dent? Was it merely due to two piers 
giving way?  Or, was it also due to 
the additional factor, as Dr. Jaisoorya 
said, that there were some  boulders 
and other  things  which struck  at 
them and caused them to break?

This has to be examined very dis­
passionately and logically.  I person­
ally think that in many cases our sta­
tistics are  very  defective.  For  ins­
tance, take the question of the catch­
ment area. I think all our statistics 
are outdated, old and wrong.  As  a 
person having a first hand knowledge 
about the Hirakud project, I may say 
this.  They calculated that water in 
the catchment area after some rainfall 
will be so much and that the water 
discharged will be so many cusecs at 
the highest level but later on some­
body said that we must go ten feet 
more, above the dam that we  have 
planned. Similarly,  all these things 
have to be studied. Whatever may be 
correct  according  to  a particular 
knowledge and information, may not 
be correct according to the  latest in­
formation.  I would urge that there 
should be a proper arrangement  for 
getting all the statistics and then we 
should take them into  consideration. 
It is no use getting excited and trying 
to blame, somebody and saying that 
so and so should be hanged. That is 
not the point.

I think it will be doing a disser­
vice to a proper consideration of this 
very vital problem on which depends 
the lives of our people. Therefore, I 
deprecate any tendency to get excit­
ed about it. I would suggest a proper 
study of the catchment areas, the dis­
charge  possibilities,  the  maximum 
stress and strain that these piers can 
stand, etc. All these things should be 
re-calculated.

In the report there are all kinds of 
formulae. I do not claim to be a tech­
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nical man and I have not been able 
to understand one point. I wish that 
all these would be considered  in a 
scientific manner.  They say that two 
piers gave way.  The finding is that 
in 1940, the third pier was construct­
ed.  At that time,  care might have 
been taken to repair, the other piers 
also.  I think there is a great deal of 
weight in that.  After hearing what 
Dr. Jaisoorya has said, that one of the 
yoimgest officers was deputed to  do 
this, I would like it to be examined- 
in all its perspective. If there is a big 
rush of water, what is the manner in 
which it would affect? They say that 
the foundation should be deeper still. 
Speaking as a layman, I feel that the 
scour should begin  from  the  floor 
area, mostly.  But,  I may tell you 
again that I am speaking as a layman.
I would like a proper  study to be 
made. At various places, scouring can 
take place for various reasons.  The 
same cause  may not be responsible 
for scouring at all places.  It all  de­
pends upon the bend of the river, the 
velocity and the other factors includ­
ing the angle in which  the pier  is 
constructed.

I think that all these factors must 
be considered. I would strongly urge 
that in all such cases a new  study 
should be made. It is regrettable that 
we have to take over a railway which 
I feel was not of the normal standard; 
it was sub-standard.  Let us admit 
that fact.
Shri T. B. Vittal Ylao: He is mak­

ing accusations without having  seen 
that railway.
Shr!  T. N. Singh: I  have  seen

things which you are probably  un­
aware. I say that all these should be 
studied. Let us not get into a panic. 
Here we are trying to consider  the 
question in a calm and dispassionate 
manner. What will happen otherwise? 
Nobody will take any responsibility. I 
also deprecate the controversy  that 
has arisen now—the talk about Glass 
III, Class II and Class I.  What are 
you going to do with the railways if 
you begin to talk like that?  That is 
a very dangerous.  I warn the House
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that such a controversy should not 
be raised.  It is a problem cjf human 
lives, efficient rimning of one of oui' 
biggest undertakings.  Let  us consi­
der this question in the proper pers­
pective and understand  it  at  the 
proper  level  and  not  indulge  in 
blaming  this  or that person.  It is 
easy to blame  some  person.  What 
is more necessary and  more  diffi­
cult. is to understand the causes and 
remedy them,  v/ithout leaving  any 
rancour or animosity or passion.  Let 
us consider it in that spirit. I know 
that the Ministry is headed by  Shri 
Shastri even now and I know that he 
is capable—he has been capable—of 
taking a very dispassionate  view of 
things. He has never shirked his res­
ponsibility or did not take the blame 
wherever it is due. Whosoever replies 
to this debate, I would like him to 
approach this problem in that spirit. 
Wherever it is due,  the blame must 
be put, but without rancour or pas­
sion. I am not an expert and I do not 
totally accept what is contained  in 
the repott after What  Dr. Jaisootya 
has said. I would not like  persons 
lil»e us who sometimes get into pas- 
sicns to examine this. I advocate that 
in every committee there should be a 
Member of Parliament but we should 
also be capable of cold blooded rea­
soning in such matters like this also.
Shri  Dhulekar (Jhansi  Distt.— 

South):  You exonerate all the offi­
cers?
Stiii T. N. Singh: I am sayihg that 

what is more  essential is a dispas­
sionate consideration of the causes of 
this accident. Then, fix the blame on 
the persbns responsible and then pu­
nish them, taking steps simultaneous­
ly to remove the defects. How many 
times do my friends want me to re­
peat—punish, pîish, punish.  I have 
flaid that and it is enough.  I am not 
prepared to get into any heat or pas- 
liion on this  question  and  in that 
spirit I urge this House to consider 
this very important question.
Shri U. m. TriviNli (Chittor):  Sir,

will you permit ille to put one 
lion? Shri Heda has said that there is 
« curve of 60 degrees at that particu-
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lar point. Was it ever mathematically 
considered by the railway engineers 
that, if the  velocity of  unobstructed 
flow was. 9-6 feet per second and the 
velocity through the bridge with obs­
truction  was 20-4  feet  per second 
according  to  Molesworth  formula, 
what will be the velocity and pres­
sure upon the piers when the curve 
was 60 degrees at that  particular 
point? Was it not an engineering mis­
take to have constructed that bridge 
at that place?

Shri Heda; The rivers also might 
have changed their course.

Shri  T.  B.  Vittal  Rao:  Mr.
Speaker, Sir, I  congratulate  Shri 
Feroze  Gandhi for  having  raised 
this discussion. This is the first of the 
three  major  train  disasters  that 
occurred in our country. It  is  very 
essential that this Report should  be 
discussed in this House so  that  we 
can find out whether the enquiry con­
ducted by the Government Inspector 
of Railways has been thorough  and 
complete. It will also help us to find 
out what lessons we hav« to draw so 
that these things can be avoided  in 
future.

The first thing to which I want ixt 
draw the attention of the House  is 
that the enquiry has been  conducted 
by the junior-most officer, who is a 
leave reserve officer in the office  of 
the Chief Government  Inspector  of 
Railways and who is to  act  when 
anybody goes on leave. This  is  an 
accident in which 136 persons perish­
ed. It is a serious accident the like of 
which never  occurred for  several 
years. To conduct an  enquiry  into 
that accident this junior officer  was 
sent.  The Minister for Communica­
tions owes an  explanation to  this 
House for this. I am sorry fRat  in­
spite of the fact that I raised  this 
point that the Minister for  Commu­
nications may be present, because this 
Report entirely concerns the Ministry 
of Communications, he is not here.

Nonetheless, the Report does bring 
out some salient factors. In the com­
position of this train on that fateful 
day two extra bogies were attached.
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[Shri T. B. Vittal Rao]
The speed of the train was increased 
only a few days or a  few  months 
before the date of this accident. The 
composition of this train used to  be 
five bogies and it was made to seven 
on that day. Whether the track  was 
safe for carrying such an additional 
load at such a speed has  not  been 
made clear to us. During  that,  day 
there was incessant rain and  many 
breaches had occurred.  Whether  it 
was safe to run that train with such 
an additional load has not been made 
clear in this Report
A suggestion was made  by  two 

Assistant Engineers, one  of  who'n. 
was promoted to the post of General 
Manager of that Railway, that  more 
waterway should be provided for by 
widening and raising the  height  of 
the bridge. One of the Assistant Engi­
neers who made that  recommenda­
tion was promoted to the very high 
post of General Manager  before  he 
fled away to Pakistan. But that sug­
gestion was not  agreed to by  the 
Chief Engineer. I admit the  Chief 
Engineer is a superior officer and  he 
has every right to scrutinise the plans 
submitted to him by Assistant Engi­
neers and decide whether he  should 
accept or reject them. But there is a 
tendency on the part of Chief  Engi­
neers to sit in their offices  and  ex­
amine proposals without visiting  the 
sites. Here, two Assistant  Engineers 
recommended that the bridge should 
be widened and its height  increased.
The Chief Engineer rejected  it.  I 

would like to know whether the Chief 
Engineer  went  to  the  spot  and 
examined the proposal. No.  He has 
done it sitting in his office. This fact 
should be borne in mind. The  Chief 
Engineers do not go on the lines  and 
at  leât  test-check  the  bridges. 
Therefore, this method of scrutinising 
the plans should be given up if acci­
dents are to be avoided  in  future. 
Wl̂ ever any suggestion is made by 
an Assistant Engineer or  a  District 
Engineer, the Chief Engineer  should 
go to the site and examine the sug­
gestion before arriving at his  deci- 
i?ion.

Then there is the question of foun­
dations. There are three piers in this 
case and the foundations of the piers 
are different. It is  common  know­
ledge that the strength of the struc­
ture is more when  the  foundations 
are uniform. This  point  was  veiy 
ably argued by my friend Shri Feroze 
Qandhi. The reasons for the variance 
in foundations have not been  given 
in this Report as well.

Sir, it is common  practice,  when 
constructing  bridges  across  rivers, 
rivulets or streams,  to  make  some 
allowance for the discharge  of  im­
pounded water in  the  tanks.  That 
allowance is made  as a  matter  of 
safety. That, unfortunately, seems  to 
have been not taken into  considera­
tion in  this  particular  csise.  That 
point  also  has  not  been  clearly 
brought forth in this Report.

Further,  nothing  is  mentioned 
about the material used in the cons- * 
truction of this bridge. I  imderstand 
—I am not quite sure because  I am 
not a technical man—that the , mate- 
• rial used for this bridge  was  lime. 
This is most unsuitable for construc­
tion of bridges. I do not know  what, 
steps are being taken by the Railway 
Board in this regard, regarding  the 
use of materials for construction  of 
bridges.

The Bridge Manual or  the  Ways 
and  Works  Manual  should  be 
thoroughly revised. I humbly request 
the Railway Minister to appoint  a 
small committee of experts to go into 
this and revise this, because engineer­
ing and various other  things  have 
developed to a great extent and it is 
no use depending on these outmoded, 
things. ■

These three accidents have clearly* 
brought out one more fact. The patrol 
man should be a skilled man and not 
an unskilled man as we have got. In , 
an accident like this we lose  about 
Rs. 3 lakhs by way of  damage  to 
rolling-stock and about Rs. 6  lakhs 
by way  of  compensation:  that  is
about Rs. 10 lakhs. The patrol  man 
has to do an important duty. Let him
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De a skilled worker and noi a semi­
skilled or unskilled worker as he is 
today.

I do not know who is the member 
in charge of civil engineering.  Pre­
viously the Chairman of the Railway 
Board was in charge of the engineer­
ing for the Railways. I do not know 
whether the  present  member  for 
engineering is also the engineer  for 
civil engineering. For all I know I am  , 
told that he is a mechanical engineer 
from the Chittaranjan. I would  ask 
him, how many  times  during  the 
course of these years since  the  re­
organisation of the  Railway  Board 
from 1st October, 1954, has he,  the 
member in  charge of  engineering, 
inspected any bridge, at least for  a 
test-check so that some kind of con­
fidence may be infused, some kind of 
a sense of duty may be infused in the 
minds of the various junior oflBcers? 
This, I feel, is a grave dereliction  of 
duty on the  part  of  the  Railway 
Board.

Shri Alagesan: Mr. Speaker, Sir, I 
rise to reply to this debate with a cer­
tain amount of hesitation and trepida­
tion.  This is not like any other ordi­
nary  debate  when  Members  put 
forward their points of view.

Dr. Jaisoorya: We do not hear any­
thing.

Shri  Matthen (Thiruvellah):  We
do not hear the Minister.  He  may 
come near.

Shri Alagesan: I  shall  raise my
voice from here.

Mr. Speaker: The  hon.  Members 
want to catch even the first letter of 
the first word.

Shri Alagesan: I should like to say 
that there is something wrong  with 
the mike arrangement here,  because 
whenever I rise to speak,  the  hon. 
Members complain that my voice is 
not heard. I think that  matter  also 
will be attended to.

Mr. Speaker: The  hon.  Minister
starts with a low pitch and as he goes 
to he raises hte voice.  I  have  no 
objection to  provide him  with  a

special mike whenever he rises in his 
seat.

Shri Alagesan: Thank you.

Dr. Jaisoorya: He is neither micro- 
phonic nor photogenic.

Shri Alagesan: This is not just an 
ordinary occasion when points of view 
are put forward by the hon.  Mem­
bers and replies given from the Gov­
ernment side. As you know, we labour 
under a triple tragedy though we are 
discussing a report about an accident 
which took place  more  than  two 
years ago. Recently, we have had the 
misfortune of two other serious acci­
dents on the Indian railways, and it 
is no suiprise that all of us are suffer­
ing under the impact of that sorrow 
and tragedy.

But I would very respectfully sub­
mit that that should be  no  reason 
why, as some of the hon.  Members 
did, we should allow our minds to be 
unhinged from reason,  fair-minded­
ness and cool jinking and judgment. 
Though we are all steeped in sorrow, 
that should be no  reason  why  we 
should not bestow some cool conside­
ration on this subject, as my  friend 
Shri T. N. Siftgh really appealed for̂
I am sorry to say that the hon. Mem­
ber, Shri Nambiar—he is not  here 
now—allowed  himself  a  complete 
outburst. He called for hanging  the
persons responsible. These  are  not
ordinarily the words that are uttered 
in this  Parliament.  Perhaps,  in  a 
different set-up, it may be  suitablê 
and it may sound reasonable, but  in 
the present set-up, it soimds absolu­
tely improper and uncalled for.

An Hon. Member: Instead of hang­
ing them, promote them.

Shri Alagesan: Perhaps Shri Nam­
biar and Members of his party  are
in a plight which I know. They  are
so perplexed in thought  and  peira- 
lysed in action. Perhaps they want to 
depend on for their political survival 
solely on three things,—̂famine, flooi*̂ 
and perhaps accidents.

Sliri V. G. Beshpande (Gima):  He 
is not here to defend his case.
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Shri Alagesan: I would like to ap­
peal to Members of  the  party  to 
which Shri Nambiaf belongs, not  to 
make any capital out of these  very 
sorrowful events.

Let us take the report  which  is 
under consideration, though some  of 
my hon. friends have travelled away 
from it. I should like to come  back 
to this report and consider what has 
been stated in it. Regarding the fixing 
of  responsibility,  the  Government 
Inspector of Railways said as follows:

“For the following reasons, I do 
not hold anyone primarily  res­
ponsible for the accident:

(a) the  waterway  at  the 
bridge was designed on • the 
old  practice  obtaining  on 
HEH the Nizam’s State Rail­
way.

(b)  The  rainfall  in  the 
catchment area and the flood 
in the river were abnormallv 
heavy and sudden.”

Further, he says:

“I am of the opinion  that  in 
1940, the  Railway  Administra- * 
tion  should  have  rebuilt  the 
abutement and piers Nos. 1  and
2 on deeper  foundations  when 
such a course was actually adopt­
ed in the reconstruction of  pier 

No. 3”.

I’here is  another  recommendation 
to which I shall  advert  sometime 

later.

Now, these are the two things that 
the Government Inspector  of  Rail­
ways, who has conducted an enquiry 
into this accident, has said. The hon. 
Member, Shri Feroze  Gandhi,  said 
that the bridge was vulnerable.  One 
other hbn.  Member also  said  the 
same thing.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: I did not say 
so. I only read the evidence of  the 
people  who  appeared  before  the 

enquiry.

Shri Alagesan: I do not like to be 

interrupted.

Mr. Speaker:  The  hon.  Member
will note down the points and  refer 
to them in his reply.

Shri Alagesan: I would like to pre­
face my remarks,  as  Shri  Frank 
Anthony pointed out, by saying that 
this is largely a technical subject. In 
fact, I may not be able to  do  full 
justice to the subject if I go into the 
details, but I only wish to say  such 
things as can be understood by  lay 
people like ourselves.

As far as the vulnerability  goes, 
let us go into what the report itself 
says. The Permanent Way  Inspector 
“considered the bridge as a  vulner­
able point requiring  special  watch 
and to this end he had instructed his 
gang mate to specially  watch  this 
bridge wnen the gang went out  on 
patrol duties during heavy rains.”

Then, the Assistant Engineer, Shri 
M. Khaja Mohiuddin Khan is referred 
to as fallows:

“Although  aware  of  the 
damage in 1939, he did not con­
sider the  bridge a  vulnerable 
point requiring special attention 
during heavy rains as protective 
works were carried out in  1940 
and subsequently  there was  no 
trouble”.

Again, when asked  as  to  whdt 
steps he took to  ensure  that  the 
bridge was kept under a watch,  he 
stated that the  Divisional  Engineer 
did not mean a constant watch  over 
the bridge but merely  desired  that 
the Permanent Way Gang who are re­
quired to go out  patrolling  during 
heavy rains should look at the  con­
dition of this bridge also.  This  was 
again corroborated by the Divisional 
Engineer. Let us see what the Divi­
sional Engineer says.

“He was not aware of any fac­
tors which  might  have  given 
rise to the belief that the bridge 
was or was likely to be rendered 
Unsafe”.

Then he  corroborates  what  the 
Assistant Engineer said  about  what
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he meant, namely, that a  constant 
watch over the bridge was not neces­
sary.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: One is in writ- 
ting. The other is verbal.

Shri Alaîesan: So, this is what the 
Permanent Way  Inspector  thought. 
He thought it was  vulnerable.  But, 
the report says that the opinion of 
the Assistant Engineer and the Divi­
sional Engineer was that the bridge 
was not something that will be ren­
dered unsafe.
Shri T. B. Vittal Rao: Please read 

further down the report.

Shri Alagesan: I think the  whole 
report has been read  by  the  hon. 
Members.
Shri f̂eroze Gandhi; We have read 

the report.

Mr.  Speaker:  The hon.  Member
will reply at the end.  There is  no 
point in interrupting now.

Shri Alagesan: The other day, Shri 
Feroze Gandhi put a question to me 
whether it was a  fact  that  “Divi­
sional Engineer” was mentioned.  It 
was actually  the  “Assistant  Engi­
neer”. It is true that he recommended 
the construction  of  two  additional 
spans etc. I at that time said I could 
not lay my hands on it. I also  said 
that if the Divisional  Engineer  had 
recommended it, the practice is that 
it should be approved by the  Chief 
Engineer and  the  Chief  Engineer 
might not have  agreed  with  that 
view. That is What I said, because I 
could not lay my hands on that par­
ticular portion of the report. The hon. 
Member, who has read the report did 
not perhaps care to remember it  at 
that time. I shall draw his attention 
to that portion. Shri Aibara, who was 
the Assistant Engineer in  the  year 
1939, recommended  two  additional 
waterways and  some  other  works. 
Shri Aibara added *that  the  Chief 
Engineer “did not consider the addi­
tional  waterways  necessary,  but 
thought that the bridge was subjected 
to scouring action as a result of the 
angular breach of  the  stream  and 
that the provision of drop wallŝ and

flopring  would  ensure  adequate 
safety.” The  question  of  angular 
breach was raised by Mr. Heda  and 
Mr. Trivedi also wanted some  light 
to be thrown on it. This  was  what 
the Chief Engineer  considered  the 
malady to be at that  time  and  he 
provided for the drop walls,  flooring 
etc. It is true that the judgment  of 
the junior officer, the Assistant Engi­
neer, turned out to be correct  after 
14 years of course and the risk that 
the Chief Engineer decided  to  take 
was not justified. When we talk  of 
the Assistant Engineer̂ the Division­
al Engineer or the Chief Engineer, it 
should be remembered that these are 
all officers  of  the  ex-Nizam  State 
Railway; we are not talking  of  the 
present Engineers.

The Government Inspector of Rail­
ways has stated:

‘It would thus appear that in 
making an appraisal of the maxi­
mum flood discharge  in  1940- 
please note the year—the  Chief 
Engineer followed the old  prac­
tice in  vogue  on  H.E.H.  the 
Nizam's State Railway. This, un- 
fortimately, gave  results  which 
fell  considerably  short  of  the 
peak flood discharge of 27th Sep­
tember, 1954.”

Mind you, the bridge stood,  as  I 
said the other day, for 14  years.  It 
was rebuilt in 1940 putting only one 
pier  on  deeper  foundations  and 
allowing the other piers to remain as 
they were, but protecting them  with 
some protection work. The  Govern­
ment Inspector continues to say:

“Had a proper appreciation  of 
the  maximum  flood  discharge 
been made in  1940, the  entire 
bridge might have been  rebuilt 
and additional waterway provid­
ed.”

May be I cannot question this state­
ment of his. I do not even want  to 
say that one  can be wise after  the 
efvent. The Chief Engineer then  took 
a certain amount of risk which, as  I 
said, was not found justified. But let 
us go into the merits of  the  actual
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[Shri Alagesan] .
groiuids which made the Chief Engi­
neer take that risk. Here I am going 
to say something technical which  I 
should hesitate to put forward  my­
self, but I hope I am right. This  is 
what my advisers have told me and I 
have also read certain  literature  on 
the subject. What was the old  prac­
tice obtaining on the ex-Nizam State 
Railway, on which the Chief Engineer
■ relied and rejected the suggestion of 
the Assistant Engineer to have addi­
tional  waterways?  The  formula 
adopted for the  calculation  of  the 
flood  discharge  was  the  Dicken’s 
formula. There are various  formula 
adopted by engineers for the  deter­
mination of the flood discharge. I am 
told in a publication issued under the 
authority of the Central  Water  and 
Power Commission as  many as  34 
formula are there  obtaining in  our 
country. In the  south,  the  Ryve's 
formula was used for the purpose of 
this calculation.  In  Bombay  they 
adopt  what  is  called  the  Inglis 
formula. In the north-west, they use 
the  Kanwarsain  formula;  in  the 
major part of the north and east, they 
use the Dicken’s formula. It was this 
Dicken’s formula that was relied upon 
by the Chief Engineer for his calcu­
lation. I do not want to go into  de­
tails. This is based on several indeter­
minate factors. It has to tstce  into 
accoimt the nature of the  catchment 
area, the nature of the rainfall  etc. 
Various  other  things  have  been 
stated; I do not want to go into them. 
These formula are not fixed, scientific 
or determinate formula. They are all 
empirical.
An  Hon.  Member: What  does

“empiricaV’ mean?
Shri Alagesan: Empirical  formula

is a formula which is not fixed. I am 
willing to  be  enlightened on  the 
meeuiing of the word “empirical”. It 
means, it is  not  a  cut  and  dry 
formula. One has to. go largely by ex­
perience by the data that one has col­
lected in a particular region.  Taking 
the Inglis formula which provides for 
the maximum amoimt of safety, even 
then something mav happen and the

bridge may be washed away. You can 
play for not cent per cent but thou­
sand per cent safety, but even  then 
something may happen and all  your 
calculations may go  awry.  That  is 
what is meant by empirical formula. 
But still, the  engineers  have  their 
own knowledge of the terrain, of the 
particular area  concerned  and  the 
behaviour of the rivers in that parti­
cular area and by  experience  make 
these calculations. Here the  calcula­
tion was made in that way. I  under­
stand that in the United  States  of 
America, they do not depend on any 
of these formula. They take each and 
every area. The catchment area being 
the same, the formula may vary  for 
different rivers taking off  from  the 
same  catchment  area.  They  have 
worked out by long study, experience 
and collection of data what should be 
the formula for a particular river  at 
various  places.  That  is  a  very 
thorough work, of course. I wish we 
have the men and money to carry out 
such work. But, I should like to  re­
mind the House that there are thou­
sands and thousands of bridges on the 
Indian Railways. I m̂ told there are
35,000 bridges.
Shri Feroze Gandhi: Over  100,000.

Shri Alagesan: I take the* informa­
tion from the hon. Member.
Of course, he knows much more on 

railways than I do.

Shri  Raghunath  Singh (Banaras 
Disst.—Central): Surely.

Shri Alagesan: No such  confirma­
tion is needed. I myself admit; it  is 
not a statement made with  mental 
reservations.
Shri Feroze Gandhi: You are very 

modest.

Shri Alagesan: The hon.  Member 
knows hundred times more than I do 
about railways. There is no need for 
Mr. Raghunath ISingh to confirm it 
and reaffirm it. I am neither  modest 
nor immodest.
This formula was worked out  and 
they provided for  a  discharge  of 
8,680  cusecs,  i.e.  cubic  feet  per 
second. They provided for that.
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After this bridge  was  washed 
away, the actual discharge was mea­
sured by the Railway Engineers. The 
actual quantum of water that passed 
through the bridge came  to  18,900 
cusecs.  It was provided for a dis­
charge of 8680 cusecs, but the actual 
flood that passed through this bridge 
came to 18,900 cusecs, that is nearly 
2i times what was provided for.

Shri V. G. Deshpande: The  mis­
take was by U times.

Shri  Alagesan:  Then,  it  was
said that the Government Inspector 
was a junior man.  Many hon. Mem­
bers are young here.  I do not think 
that Shri T. B. Vittal Rao is an old 
person; but he is a very wise person.
I do not know how an officer being a 
junior affects the nature of the  en­
quiry.

An  Hon.  Member:  Experience
counts.

Shri Alagesan: This country is di- ■ 
vided into four circles.  Whenever 
anything happens in  a  particular 
circle, naturally, the  Inspector  in 
charge of that circle is made to en­
quire into the accident.  So I  was 
amused when the question of juniority 
or seniority was trotted out on  the 
floor of the House.

Shri Cattopadhyaya  (Vijayavada); 
We are amused to hear this.

Shri Alagesan; This Inspector who 
enquired into the matter,  consulted 
Dr. Joglekar, a  very  experienced 
man who is in charge of the hydraulic 
research section in Karakvasla near 
Poona. He examined and found that 
the bridge gave way between 10,000 
and 14,000 cusecs.  Though it  was 
designed for 8680 cusecs, it  would 
have stood its ground up to 10,000 
cusecs.  It was found that it  gave 
way between 10,000 and 14,000 cusecs. 
When it was actually measured and 
found to be 18,900 cusecs, he suggest­
ed another formula, the Inglis for­
mula.  That formula, as I said, is not 
a very fixed or determinate or con­
crete one.  It was evolved sometime

in 1940 or 1930, I do not remember. 
Then it was revised.  It was not  in 
the knowledge of the Engineers when 
actually the bridge was reconstruct­
ed, that is, in 1940.  No  Engineer 
knew about Ihis formula.  This for­
mula, it is stated, will apply only to 
the Bombay region, that is. Western 
India  region.  Dr.  Joglekar  gave 
a formula, modifying the Inglis for­
mula and calculated a discharge  of
20,000  cusecs.  On the basis of  this, 
the new bridge has been constructed. 
That I may say.  All these fourteen 
years, the flood was not as ferocious 
as the one that occurred in 1954. We 
took the largest amount of water that 
has* passed through it and we have 
provided a little more than that, God 
forbid, something may happen 20 
years hence and the actual discharge 
may be 40,000 cusecs in which case, 
the bridge will be surely  washed 
away.  I do not want any accident 
hereafter in ê Indian Railways. In 
fact, I shall be glad if any hon. Mem­
ber can give a guarantee to the House 
and the country that there will be 
no more accident in the Indian Rail­
ways.  I do not know the  Prime 
Minister’s mind.  If such a  person 
can come forward with such an as­
surance, certainly he will be invited 
to occupy the place of the Railway 
Minister.  It can be safely taken, as 
far as the present calculations go.

Mr. Speaker: Does the hnn. Minis­
ter mean to say that when a  new 
formula is discovered, ê old  for­
mula may be thrown into the back­
ground immediately and the officers 
who go about or the Railway .Board 
or the Minister should not, in view 
of the rrew formula, find out how many 
bridges satisfy these conditions?

Shri Alagesan: I am  coming  to 
that.  I am only saying that it is no 
use swearing by these formulae, be­
cause it is in the nature of the for­
mula itself that it is not determinate, 
and that it is not a fixed quantity.
It has to be taken, and  measured 
taking into account all the physical 
conditions, nature of the flood, etc.
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It means.Shri V. G. DeshpaiUte:
no lormula is necessary.

Shri Alagesan: Still it is nacessary. 
It is not free licence.

Shri V. G.  Deshpande: Depend
upon God.

Shri Alagesan: Of course, we  do. 
I hope the hon. Member doss.

Shri V. G. Deshpande: I do.

Shri Alagesan: The Inspector says 
about the flood: that it is  evident 
that between 19:13 hours and 22:50 
hours, in a very short  period  of 
3i hours, the discharge of the river 
built itself up from nothing to about 
18,900 cubic feet per second.  The 
flood in the river was not only ab­
normally haavy, but also sudden. All 
fairminded people will find no diffi­
culty in agreeing with this proposi­
tion that one could not have foreseen 
that such a flood will build itself up 
in the small stream that  it  was. 
Anyhow, it did not occur all these 
14 years.  It is unfortunate that  it 
occurred in 1954.  That was the posi­
tion with reference to the provision 
of the additional waterway.  As I 
said, we may now say that in 1940, 
this Inglis formula, which was  not 
then known, should have been ap­
plied.  It was not known then.

An Hon. Member: It should have 
been applied.

Shri Alagesan: If anybody says
that it should have been applied at 
that time, there should be something 
wrong.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: It should have 
been applied in 1954.

Shri Alagesan: -----with the think­
ing processes of that gentleman.

Shri V. G. Deshpande: Ignorant
people cannot be blamed.

Shri Alagesan: I should like to say 
something about what the Govern­
ment  Inspector  has  mentioned as 
item No. 3.  He says:

am of the opinion that the ‘ 
accident might have been averted 
if the P.W. Gang had gone out 
on patrolling duty.........”
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Shri Nambiar was  controverting 
Shri Frank Anthony when he was re­
ferring to this.  This is a  diflereat 
thing.  He says:
“___but I do not consider that
it could have been averted by 
Patrolman Mankadu Ramadu as 
according to the timings  pî 
scribed for him, he was last due 
to be at the bridge at 21:55 hours 
when the bridge was safe  for 
traffic.”
He felt that this could have been 
averted if the P.W. Gang had gone 
out on patrolling duty.  That is what 
the Inspector has stated.

Questions were raised that some­
body is against Class IV staff  and 
that small men should not be punish­
' ed, etc.  About patrolmen also,  it 
was said that they did not do  any 
patrolling that night.  Now, it  is 
difficult to proceed  against  these 
gentlemen because there  are  the 
sheets in which they  obtained  the 
signatures of the station masters. As 
against the glaring evidence of  the 
patrol sheets, it was not possible for 
the Railway administration to  pro­
ceed against tJhese people.  There 
was no question of wreaking  ven­
geance on the small man. In spite of 
the fact that the Government Insx>ec- 
tor of Railways held that the patrol­
men did not do their duty and  the 
accident could have been averted if 
the P.W. Gang had gone to inspect 
the bridge, in spite of that, we could 
not proceed against them.

Shri V. G. Deshpande: The station 
master should have  been  taken to 
task—those who signed the sheets.

Shri Alagesan: There is no evidence, 
of course.  It is easy to say: hang this 
man, hang that man.  There is  no 
evidence.  The patrol sheets are clear 
evidence, and it is not easy to con­
trovert it.  If you have got any doubt, 
you can consult Shri Vittal Rao as to 
whether it is possible to  proceed 
against anybody in  those  circum­
stances.  So, it is not a matter  of 
trying to shield anybody or trying 
to wreak vengeance on the small man.
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This aspect has bean stressed be­
fore also, and I should like to men­
tion it.  I am not prepared to  say 
that discipline has gone down to nil 
among the railwaymen.  There  are 
many, lakhs and lakhs of railwaymen 
who want to discharge their duties 
conscientiously, but I should like to 
mention here the difference that has 
taken place.  The old element of f2ai 
based upon some punishment  that 
will be received has disappeared.

Shri  Velayudhan  (Quilon cum 
Mavalikkara—Reserved—Sch. Castes): 
Because new men came  there  in 
power.

Shri Alagesan: Now, that has to be 
replaced.  It has to be replaced by 
a spontaneous ssnst of duty.  Maybe 
it may take some time, but I hope 
that the million railwaymen who are 
actually responsible for the running 
of the railways in this  country—it 
should be admitted that though there 
are accidents and very bad accidents, 
thousands and thousands of  trains 
run in tJhis country without any acci­
dents; that major fact is  forgotten 
and I should like to draw the atten­
tion of hon. Members to  that—will 
soon get into that high sense of duty 
and discipline.  That is the only sub­
stitute that I see.  We cannot wield 
the big stick.  Those days are over, 
never to return.  It is not possible 
any more to wield the big stick. We 
are a growing democracy and when 
the discipline that is born out  of 
fear has disappeared, it can only be 
replaced by a self-bom high sense 
of duty, and I hope that that duty 
will be perceived soon by the rail­
waymen, even those who are unable 
to see it now and be imbibed  by 
them.

Another matter was raised,  and 
that is with reference to inspection 
by the Members  of  the  Railway 
Board.  We seem  to  have suddenly 
turned into very bloodthirsty  peo­
ple.  We want the heads of so  and 
so, the hands of so and so and the 
legs of so and so.  I do not know

when we became so violent in  our 
attitude.

Shri Kamath (Hoshangabad): Theŷ 
have fallen into the river, the headŝ 
hands and legs.

Shri Alasresan: The hon. Member 
was not here when I began.

Shri Kamath: I was here.  You are 
blind apparently.  I have been listen­
ing carefully from the very begin­
ning.

Shri Alagresan: I know the  hon. 
Member specialises in the art of in­
sulting other hon. Members.

Shri Kamath:  I protest  strongly
against this.  He has insulted  the 
whole house.

Shri Alagesan: I do not object. Let 
him please himself.

Shri Ferose Gandiii: The waterway 
is not sufficient between these two.

Shri Alag’esan: I did not get the 
hon. Member.

Mr. Speaker:  We are 15 minutes
past five.*

Shri Kamath: The Minister is in­
sulting the whole House.

Mr. Speaker: So far as this is con­
cerned, if he did not notice him, he 
need not immediately get up and say 
the Minister is blind.  Let us go on 
We have already sat  15  minutes 
more.

Shri Alagesan: I am finishing in a 
few minutes.

The Board has been sufficiently ex­
panded.  We have  got  additional 
Members who are in charge of staff 
matters, civil  engineering  workŝ 
commercial side etc., so that the fuD 
Members of the Board are free for 
more and more inspection,  actually 
going out on the line.  It is  very 
necessary, and I am glad hon. Mem­
bers stressed this very constructive 
aspect.  That has been done,  and 
the Members of the Railway Board 
will now be more free to go out  on 
inspection, and actually see things for 
themselves and  remove  and rectify 
defects.  It is very necessary  and
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this constructive thing, I hope, will 
be done in all earnestness by  the
Members of the Railway Board.
We have been talking about  the 

past, about what should have hap­
pened in 1940,  I should like to say 
what we have done now sifter  the 
recent calamity.  The new bridge has 
been designed and built about 850 
feet down stream of the old bridge. 
The site has been  changed, and  this
was done on the  advice  of  and
in consultation with Dr.  Joglekar. 
This site was selected in consultation 
with Dr. Joglekar of the  Central 
Hydraulic Research Station,  Poona. 
Tlie design of the new bridge  was 
also finalised after model  experi­
ments were carried out at the Hyd­
raulic  Research  Station by  Dr.
Joglekar.  The waterway  p̂rovided 
imder the new bridge is tor the esti­
mated discharge of 20,000  cusecs 
based on the English formula.  The 
Central Railway engineers also traced 
from floods observations the discharge 
of the nala on the fateful night of 
27th September, 1954 to be  18,900 
cusecs.  The new bridge consists  of 
eight spans of 40 feet each  with 
foundations 26 ft. to 31 ft. below bed 
level. IjBt us hope and pray that 
this bridge will stand and stand for 
ever.

Shri Velayudhan: Stand for ever?

Shri A. M. Thomas  (Emakulam): 
May I ask....

Shri Alagesan:  No, I have  not
finished.

Shri Frank  Anthony:  Will  the
Minister deal with this question  of 
speeds with these WP engines on the 
track?

Shri Alagesan: I am unable to say 
anjrthing on the spur of the moment. 
Certainly that will be taken into ac- 
coimt.
I am glad to give this information 

to the House.  Since the authorised 
formulae were  evolved  by  their 
authors for the assessment of  the 
waterway required to be  provided

for bridges, there has l>een  a  big 
advance in the study of hydrology. 
It has, therefore, been decided to set 
up a high level committee consisting 
of the representatives of the railways 
and other Ministries concerned like 
the Roads Wing of the  Transport 
Ministry and the Central Water and 
Power Commission, and any  other 
Members they would like to co-opt 
on £m ad hoc basis.  This committee 
will look into all the aspects of the 
problem, and then define principles 
to be adopted and the formulae to be 
used in different areas.  The compo 
sition of the committee and the terms 
of reference are under consideration.
I  have nothing more to add.  I 

am grateful to all the Members who 
have made constructive suggestions.

Shri Matthen*  May I make  one 
request?

Shri. Alagesan:  I have not  yet
finished.  One minute.

Shri Frank Anthony has been an 
unsparing critic of the railway ad­
ministration.  Somebody called  him 
the defence counsel.  I think  that 
hon. Member has done injustice  to 
Shri Anthony.

Dr. Jaisoorya: I know best what I 
am talking about.  As if I do  no* 
know what I am talking about.

Shri Alagesan: If anybody has been 
a consistent and continuous critic ’ of 
the railways, it is Shri, Anthony.

Dr. Jaisoorya: A man can change 
coats.  Elections are coming.

Shri Alagesan: I should like  to 
thank Shri Anthony for the very con­
structive suggestions he has  made 
not only today, but the other  day 
when he made a speech.

Shrî Matthen: I â glad he  has 
appointed some more Members  on 
the Railway Board, but will he con­
sider the appointment of some more 
engineers on the railways so  that 
they may look properly to mainten­
ance.  The engineers are overworked, 
and so I am only requesting.
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Alagesan: As far as the ap­
' pointment of engineers goes, we have 
recruited a very large number of 
engineers, in view of the very large 
number of works that have to  be 
undertaken under the Second  Five 
Year Plan.

Shri A. M. Thomas: May I put one
question?  This report was submitted 
as early as 1954.  But accidents hav« 
taken place after that.  May I en­
quire whether the Railway Ministry 
or the Railway Board or the Depart­
ment concerned had taken any steps 
in the light of the facts disclosed in 
this report?

Mr. Speaker: Before  the  other 
accidents occurred?

Shri A. M. Thomas: Yes.

Shri Alaĝsan; If I may say so, one 
of the main recommendations of this 
report was----- ,

Shri Bhagwat Jha Azad  (Pumea 
cum Santal Parganas): Notice.

Shri Alagesan: The hon. Member 
may require notice, not I.

Mr. Speaker:  Order, order.  Let
there be no interruptions.

Shri Alagesan: One of the recom­
mendations was in regard to the way 
in which it should be rebuilt.  That 
has been done.

Shri V. G. Deshpande:  In  t̂hat
bridge.  But xwhat about the  other 
bridges?

Shri Alâesan:  The Ĥouse jaJeô
knows now that we have ap]   ̂
a committee to go into the qu( 
of the condition of the bridges in 
Hyderabad area.  Besides, the Chief 
Engineers of the various  railways 
have been asked tp collect data.

Shri A. M. Thomas:  But that is
after the third accident.

Shri Alagesan: Np, it was not after 
that.

When this committee reports, what­
ever action to fou;nd  necessary  In 

512 LSD—6

other railways can  also  be simul­
taneously taken.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: I think it wiU 
be taking advantage if I were to give 
a harsh reply to the Deputy Minister. 
My main point was that the two piers 
of this bridge  were not on  deep 
enough foundations, but were resting 
on sand. That was the main  thing, 
not the waterway or anything else. 

Mr. Speaker: That was admitted. 

Shri Feroze Gandhi: The Inspector 
says that:

“The inadeqiiacy of waterway, 
however,  would not have caused 
the failure of the bridge if the 
piers had been  founded on tock 
or hard moorum;  instead,  the 
railway  embankment may  have 
been breached or the flood water 
may have evertoped  it  without 
causing serious damage.”

‘ The point is that the piers  gave 
way.  There is no question  of the 
waterway at all. At a later date,  an 
engineer calculated that the water­
way  was insufficient  and that  it 
should have been more. But the main 
point was that the two piers were not 
on deep enough foundation. One pier, 
that is, pier No. 3 was on a founda­
tion of 15 25 feet, and piers Nos. 1 and
2 were on a foundation of 6*5 feet. 
That was the point, and that has not 
been answered at all.

Pandit Thaknr Das Bhargava (Gur- 
gaon): Because that is unanswerable.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: I am not con­
cerned with empirical formulae,  nor 
am I concerned over which formula is 
up to date and which formula is. out 
of date. That is not my concern. That 
is the concern of the Railway Board.

This railway was  taken over  in 
April 1950, four and a half years be­
fore thjs accident. It was in the pos­
session of the Railway Board.

I made a direct charge against the 
Railway Board, which has  not been 
answered, namely that it was the res­
ponsibility of the Railway Board to 
have checked the lines  and to haŷ
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checked the bridges as provided for 
in  the  Indian  Railway  Code.  It 
has the same set  of  rules  and it 
says that when a line under construc­
tion has to be declared an open line, 
they should go to the Chief Inspector 
of Railways; they should have asked 
the Chief Inspector of Railways  to 
check tiie track and to check the bri­
dges. «

Coming to the Chief Engineer,  I 
said that the Chief Engineer had made 
a statement that he did not know the 
history of this bridge.  Now, what is 
the responsibility of the Chief Engi­
neer? Here is the Indicin  Rciilway 
Code, from which I had quoted one 
para earlier.  Now, I shall quote the 
para dealing with his direct respon­
sibility. Under Form No.  1629(e)— 
Maintenance of bridge—Bridge  Re­
gister, we find:

.  “The  Register  should  be re­
viewed periodically by the Exe­
cutive  Engineer  concerned  and 
the Chief Engineer with a view to 
ensure that the bridges are main­
tained  efficiently  and  that de­
fects  have  been  removed 
promptly.**

How could the Chief Engineer have 
issued this certificate to the  Railway 
Boatd? That is what I would like to 
know. It is his responsibility to issue 
annual  certificates to  the  Railway 
Board. He did not even know the his­
tory of the bridge. When that was the 
case, how  did he issue  the certifi­
cates? That is the point. Is it enough 
if the Deputy Chief Engineer comes 
and says, ‘Yes, I visited this section’? 
That point also has not been answer­
ed. Did he go on a picnic?  I ask: 
Was it a picnic?

Dr. Jaisoorya: Yes.

Shri U. M. Trivedi:  It was not a
saloon.

Shpi Velayndhan: Usually, it is like 
that.

Shri Feroze Gandhi:  He said The
pages concerning this bridge escaped

my attention’. And my hon.  friend 
Shri Frank  Anthony says  that the 
patrolmen are to blame.

Shri Frank Anthony:  I said that
they were all to blame.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: That is why I 
did not raise it in the debate. I put 
a question to the Minister the other 
day. The written question was:

“In view of the  findings  that 
the  accident  could  have  been 
averted if the  PWD gang  had 
gone out on patrolling duty, what 
action  has  been  taken  against 
those officers who were responsi­
ble for not sending out these men 
on duty?”.

■̂e reply to that was.

Shri Alagesan: Do I have a chance 
to reply to these points?

Mr. Speaker: Under the rules, the 
hon. Member who tables the motion 
is entitled to the right of reply.  If, 
however, there are any very serious 
matters raised, then they can be re­
plied to by the Minister.

Shri Feroze Gandhi:  Then, I must
also  have the  chance to reply  to 
those points.

Mr. Speaker:  Hon. Members may
kindly read the rules again. It'' can­
not be an endless thing.

Shri V. G. Deshpande:  We can sit
tomorrow.

Mr. Speaker:  After Shri  Feroze
Gandhi’s speech,  I shall allow  the 
Minister to reply, and then, we shall 
disperse.

Shri Feroze Gandhi:  After all, the 
Minister had taken forty to forty-five 
minutes, and he could have answered 
all my points. I am only referring to 
the points which he has not answered.

Shri Kamath:  He could not ans­
wer.
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Shri Feroze Gandlii:  In answer to
my written question,  the following 
was the reply that I got;

“The rules  prescribe that  the 
gangmate should  take his gang 
out when there is heavy or pro­
longed rain. No officer is there­
fore,  responsible for failure  to 
send him out. In this case,  the 
gang-mate actually  went  out as 
soon as he leamt of the flootog 
but  he arrived  at the  bridge 
after the accident.”

So, he did out. Then,  my other 
point remains,  namely that you are 
making the man do eighteen miles of 
walking every night, for which you are 
paying Rs. 0-2-8 and Rs. 0-4-0 for 
the night, for the extra work. If an 
industrial establishment  were to do 
this, the proprietor would be in jail.

That is what I would like to submit. 
All these points should be answered. 
This is not the way of answering a 
debate,-r-to say that the formulae are 
empirical or that the formulae  are 
theoretical. I agree that the formulae 
are empirical. But each formulae has 
to be taken as good at the time it is 
introduced. If in 1940 there was for­
mula, in 1950 there is another. Take 
that formula.
I would repeat what I said̂ earlier. 
Take the case of the Jimma  bridge. 
This year, we know what happened to 
the Jumna bridge, and how 'the Sha- 
hdara bund was flooded.  What is it 
due to? Under the  First Five Year 
Plan and the Second Fiye Year Plan, 
we-have interferred with the natural 
flow and the drainage of water.  We 
know that. Half the country has been 
covered with canals, and river valley 
projects and things like that,  which 
actually interfere  with the drainage. 
Herein, the railways  must be cauti­
ous.  If' the canals are raised  to a 
height of about 15 or 20 feet,  they 
have to be above the surface level of 
the earth.  They interfere  with the 
natural flow of water.  The railway 
tracks are running all over the coim- 
try. So, some machinery should be set 
up to co-ordinate the developmental

activities and see  that the  natural 
drainage is not interferred with.  I 
have met many  old villagers in  my 
constituency and they say that *Never 
in the past 30 or 40 or 50 years do we 
ever remember to have had such a 
flood as this. But after this canal has 
been  built,  our village  is always 
flooded’. It only means that you have 
interferred with the natural drainage 
of water. ‘
Now,  these  are  the  things  that 
should be tak̂ into  consideration. 
The Minister says that a committee 
has been appointed.  I say, it  will 
do nothing.  The Chief Inspector of 
Railways should have  been on that 
committee.  He should  have  been a 
member of that committee. But  why 
is he not there? He is not there be­
cause aU the time there is a conflict 
between the Railway Board and the 
Chief Inspector of Railways.

‘  The Railway Board want to take 
away the powers of the Chief Inspec­
tor of Railways. They want to reduce 
these powers because he is irksome. 
The job of the Chief  Inspector  of 
Railways is not only to go and in­
quire into accidents. His job is to fix 
standards for the Indian railways. No 
matter what it is, even if it is a door 
handle, it is his job. If it is a bridge, 
if it is a track, he tests it out He car­
ries out various tests. Then he certi­
fies that the bridge or track is safe for 
public traffic.
I say that these rules should have 
been  observed  when̂ the  Nizam’s 
State Railway was taken over.  You 
may call it oversight. If you say that 
it is oversight,  then I will say no­
thing; I will withdraw every charge 
against the Railway Board.  But let 
them say,  *Yes,  something did go 
wrong’. Let them not say,  *We are 
not responsible*. They are responsible. 
Who else is rêonsiblfe?  The Rail­
way Board exercise the powers of the 
Central Government as far  as they 
concern  the  Indian  Railwajrs  Act. 
They have absolute powers. We have 
handed over the whole thing to them. 
We have entrusted it to them  and 
they too must do their job.  '
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Shri Heda and Shri  T. N. Singh 
said that the tanks burst and  there 
was more water. This is wrong. Here 
is the finding of the Inspector:

“I therefore consider  that the 
bursting of the tanks on the 27th 
September, 1954, did not materi­
ally contribute to the collapse of 
the bridge”.

Thôe two piers were  hanging in 
the air or resting on sand! Ev̂ if a 
third-rate engineer had gone into  it, 
this could have been fotmd out

The difficîty is that our  officers 
have become so smug and so compla­
cent. They say, **What are we to do? 
The men imder us do not work. Coo­
lies are not working.  What can we 
do?” I say there are rules regarding 
the duties of patrolmen and gangmen. 
Everybody  should be made to work. 
If they are not working, fire them.  I 
say, face a strike on the Indian rail­
ways. Have it put. If you think that 
the workers on the Indian  railways 
are indisciplined, if you say that they 
are not working, I say, let us face it; 
we will all support the Minister,  We 
wiU support the Railway Board.  Let 
us have a general strike on the Indi­
an railways, but no more of this.

Shri Alagesan: Not a very kind in­
tention.

Shri Feroze Gandhi: When we tell 
you something, take it that we  are 
trying to advise you in the best inte­
rests of the country.  I say, if you 
think that there is indiscipline, then 
face a general strike. Let the work­
ers go on strike.  Let things happen 
like that, but let us not go on like 
this.

With regard to the bridge  itself, 
there was some mention about wher 
ther it was a small  bridge or a big 
bridge.  Under the Indian  Railway 
Code, bridges are defined. This parti­
cular bridge. No. 893, falls into  the 
category of a major bridge. It is not 
a minor bridge.
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I wiH make one more request  and 
then sit down. Shri Shahnawaz Khan, 
now Deputy Minister of Railways and 
Transport,  was appointed in 1954-55 
Chairman of a Committee called the 
Railway Accidents Inquiry  Commit­
tee. I demand that the Report of this 
Committee be placed on the  Table 
of the House.  It is very necessary 
that we must know what are the con­
tents of that Report. Two years have 
passed since the Committee reported. 
I would suggest to the Railway Min­
ister that this Report may be placed 
on the Table of the House.

Mr. Speaker: Does the hon.* Minis­
ter want to say anything?

Shri Alagesan: If you want me to 
say a few words, I will.

Otherwise, I do not want to take 
the time of the House.

Mr. Speaker: That is all right.

Shri Velayudhan:  What about the
Report of the Committee?

Mr. Speaker:  We will go  to the
nêt item of business.

COMMITTEE  ON  PRIVATE 
MEMBERŜ BILLS AND 

RESOLUTIONS 

Sixty-fifth Report 

Shri Raghnnath  Sin  ̂ (Banaras 
Distt.—Central) : I beg to present the 
Sixty-fifth Report  of the Committee 
on Private Members’ Bills and Reso­
lutions.

MESSAGE FROM RAJYA SABHA 

Joint Secretary: Sir, I have to re­
port the following message teceived 
from the Secretary of Rajya Sabha:

“In accordance with the provi­
sions of sub-rule (6) of rule 162 
of the Rules of Procedure  and 
Conduct of Business in the Rajya 
Sabha,  I am directed to return




